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STATE OFr OHIO . - 35 North Fourth Street, 1"7F1001'

ORFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Chin 43215
———— . Telephone 614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE B00-282-0370

Facsimile 614-728-73%8

Members of City Council
City of Oxford

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of the City of Oxford, Butler County,
prepared by Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co. for the audit period January 1, 1999 through
December 31, 1999. Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit
required by Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the
accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not
express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected
by the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the
Auditor of State, regulations and grant requirements. The City of Oxford is responsible for
compliance with these laws and regulations.

UM PETRO
hditof of State

August 15, 2000
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CITY OF OXFORD
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Federal
Pass-through CFDA
Federal Grantor/Program Title Entity Number Number Disbursements
1.5, Department of Housing and Urban Development

(Passed through Ohio Department of Development)

Community Deveiopment Biock Grant '97 AF-97-163-1 14228 3 61,251

Community Development Block Grant '98 AF-98-163-1 14,228 102,364

CDBG Comununity Housing Improvement Grant AC-96-163-1  14.228 104

163.719

{Passed through Butler County Department of Development) 7

Community Development Block Grant '98 BOSUC390034 14.228 101,508

Total Community Development Block Grant 265,227

{Passed through Chio Department of Development)

Home Investment Partnerships Program None 14.239 18,880
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 284,107
U.S. Department of [nterior

(Passed through Ohio Historical Society)

Historic Preservation Fund None 15.904 8,967
Total U.S. Department of Interior ' 8,967
LS. Department of Justice

COPS Fast 95-CFWX1050 16.710 42,500

COPS More _ 97-CMWX0527 16.710 39,999

COPS Universal 97-CMWX0527 16.710 © 1,550
Total U.S. Department of Justice 84,049

Total Federal Awards 3 377,123

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS:

Note A - Significant Accounting Policies

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is a summary of the activity of the City's
federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.



CITY OF OXFORD
Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

The prior audit disclosed no instances of noncompliance that were required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards or noncompliance with requirements of major
federal programs. In addition, no reportable conditions or material weaknesses with respect to

intemal controls over financial reporting or internal controls over compliance were reported in the
prior year.



Clark Schaefer Hackett &Co

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Members of Council
City of Oxford:

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Oxford as of and for the year ended
December 31, 1999 and have issued our report thereon dated May 1, 2000. We conducted our
audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General
of the United States. '

Compliance -
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Oxford’s financial

statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed ne instances
of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Oxford’s internal control over

financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of onc
or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low ievel the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported
to management in a separate letter dated May 1, 2000.



This report is intended solely for the information of management, City Council, and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

W/ f“'d%'z /‘M/a

Cinecinnati, Qhio
May 1, 2000



Clark, Schaefer Hackett&Co.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Members of Council
City of Oxford:

Compliance o
We have audited the compliance of the City of Oxford with the types of compliance requirements

described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budger (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1999.
The City of Oxford’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the
responsibility of the City’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s
compiliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the City of Oxford’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Oxford complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1999,

Internal Control Qver Compliance
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective control over

compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.



Our consideration of the internai control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to
a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards )
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Oxford as of and for the

year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated May 1, 2000. Our audit
was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the
general purpose financial statements of the City. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our
opinton, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial
statements.

This report is intended solely for the information of management, City Council, and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

(lick, SAA, fklot & o

Cincinnati, Ohio
May 1, 2000



CITY OF OXFORD

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Caosts

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statenrernts

Type of report issued on financial statements:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Matenal weakness{es) identified?
Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Reportable condition(s) identified

not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings that are required to be reported
in accordance with Circular A-~133, Section .510(a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA # 14.228 Community Development Block Grant

Dollar threshold to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
Section I - Financial Statement Findings

None.

Section 1II - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None.

unqualified
no

noe
no

no

no

unqualified

no

$300,000

YEs
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The Citizens of Oxford, Ohio, o e - . -May 1,2000
Honorable Mayor, and Members of City Coungil, .  ~ = -~ 7 =~ IR S- T

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Oxford for the fiscal year ended December 31,
15999, is hereby submitted.

_ INTRODUCTION

R R N

While there is no legal requirement for the preparation of this report, it represents a commitment by the City of Oxf{ord
(the City) to conform to nationally recognized standards of excellence in financial reporting. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the presented data, and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, iricluding all disclosures, rests with
the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data, as presented, is accurate in alt material respects; it
is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and resuits of operations of the City; afid all
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activity have been presented,

THE REPORT:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is designed to assist and guide the reader in understandmg its contents,
The report is comprised of the following three major sections:

1. The Introductory Section mcludes the table of contents, thls letter of transmittal which presenis the City's

organization, operational structure and accomphshments a list of principal elected officials and adminigtrative
personnel, an organizational chart, and the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting,.

2. The Financial Section containg the City’s general purposc ﬁnanmal statements which include explanatory
notes thereto, the combining and mdlwduai fund and account group ﬁnancml statements and schedules, and thc
Report of Independent Auditors.

3. The Statistical Section presents social, economic and historical data in a multi-year format whlch can be usedk

to identify financial trends and data relatwe to the ﬁscal capacity of the City.

The City's financial statements are required to be,audited in accordance with Ohio Revised Code. Our auditors
performed an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govemment Audltmg Standards issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States. In conjunction with their examination the audltors will i lssue ascparate B

report on the internal conn'ol structure and comphance with applicabie laws and regulations,

’ Printed on recycled paper



THE REPORTING ENTITY: -

For financial reporting purposes, the City includes all funds, account groups, organizations, functions and activities
making up the City of Oxford (the Primary Government) in accordance with the Governmental Accounnng Standards

Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 "The Financial Reportmg Entity The anary ‘Government includes the'financial

activities of the Departments of City Manager, Engineering, Finance, FlrefEmergency Medical Serv:ces Law,
Management Information Systems, Parks and Recreation, Persoxmel , Planning, Police, and Serv‘me

Excluded from the reporting entity because they are legally separate and fiscally independent of the City_are the

Talawanda City School District and the McCullough-Hyde Hospital, Inc.
A complete discussion of the City's reporting entity is provided in Nofe | to the General Purpose Financial Staternents.
The City of Oxford is a home-rule municipal corporation created under the laws of the State of Ohio. The City operates

under its own Charter. The current Charter, which provides for a Council-Manager form of government, was adopted
in 1960. Oxford was organized as a municipality in 1830 as a direct result of the influence of Miami University, a state

university which continues to play a vital role in virtually all agpects of the commumty The University, with a student

population of approximately 16,000, is both a direct and indirect source of many jobs in and around the City. Miami

University also contributes substantially to the social and cultural environment of the community. Oxford possesses
2 college town environment in a beautiful rural setting. -

Oxford is located in the Miami Valley Region of Southwestern Ohio, in a farming afea, southwest of Dayton and north

of Cincinnati, The City lies approximately 6 miles from the Indiana state line at the western edge of 4 rapidly growing

Butler County. The City has an estimated population of 22,469 and covers an area of approximately 5.8 square miles.

THE MANAGEMENT:

Oxford has a Council-City Manager form of government. The seven-member council is elected by its citizens as follows:

Four members are elected in an odd-numbered year with the remaining three elected in the following odd-numbered B

year. Council members serve four-year terms and are limited to two consecutive texms The Mayor and Vice Mayor are
chosen by Council from among its members to serve a two-year term,

The City Cotnicil appoints a City Manager, a Law Director and Finarice Dtrectorf’Cny Aud1t0r Thc City Manager is
responsible for appointing the Department Heads and city staff.

CITY MANAGER’S DEPARTMENT - The City Manager is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the city

and the fulfillment of goals and objectives as established by the city council and by the manager Hls ‘department -

includes three other full-time employees. .

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT - Engmeermg services for major capital projects are presently prov1ded to the City
on 2 contractual basis by outside engincering firms. The Engmeermg department prepares p]ans and specifications for

smaller capital improvements (water line and sewer line construction and reconstruction, and street and storm drainage’

construction and reconstruction) and other engineering services as needed. The department consists of the department

head, 2 full-time engineers, one engineer aide, and an administrative assistant who also serves the service department '

duector

ii



FINANCE DEPARTMENT: . . ..\ oo e T

Utility Accounting - The Finance Department is respoﬁs'ible for billing and collecting user fees for the City's enterprise
operations (water, sewer and refise), plus processing all other City cash receipts. The division employs three full-time
individuats, . : '

General Acconnting - The remaining five fitll-time staff members (including the department head) of the Finance
Department are responsible for all areas of financial administration including cash management and investments; risk
management;, debt management; purchase orders, accounts payable and disbursements; payroll revenue and
expenditure recordmg, and budgeting and financial reporting. ) -

FIRE/EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT - The division is comprised of 24 firefighters and 27
emergency medical technicians, plus 2 full-time fire chief and a part-time assistant fire chief. All division services,
including all basic fire protection and emergency medical and rescue servxces are tax supported: c1tlzens are not charged_
separately for any of the services. . G

HUMAN RESQURCES DEPARTMENT - The Human Resources Dirgctor is fesponsible for all personnel functions -
including hiring, personnel policies and procedures, employee health 1 insurance, other benefits administration and liaison
to the employee benefits committee. R S e e L

LAW DEPARTMENT- The Law Diréctor provides advice and legal representation regarding City lggal matters.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT- The MIS director provides strategic leadership and

plaming regarding City technological enhancements, and serves in a support role for operating departments.

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT - This department employs 5 full-time and up to 12 permanent part-time
employees. . Throughout the year, up to 22 part-time people are hired to coordinate and administer organized recreational
programs and to operate the municipal swimming pool. In addition, the Recreation Department is responsxble for the
maintenance of the City 's park system which includes ten patk facilities,

PLANNING DEPAR - B e

Planning and Zoning -This division employs 3 full-time persons, including the Planning Director. The department
provides zoning, historic preservation and subdivision review, issues zoning permits, prepares plans and studies, and ~
administers the federal Community Development Block Grant programs. The department presently uses the services
on a contraciual basis of an outside firm for Chief Building Official pending the filling of a vacant position. It also =
assists the Affordable Housmg comrmssmn and fum1shes pIannmg adv1ce to. other Clty departments Cny Councﬂ and
boards and commissions. - ST R LT T . S

Inspectional Services - The division is comprised of 5 full-time employees and two_part-time employees.

Responsibilities include building plan review; issuing building, electrical and mechanical permits in conjunctiofr with
the Planning and Zoning Department; building and related inspections;and serving on the various trade boards. In
addition, the division is responsible for administering 2 rental housing inspection program. It currently uses the
assistance of an outside firm, pending the filling of two vacant building inspector positions. All residential rental units
in the City must be inspected and meet certain minimum standards before a rental housing permit may be issued and .
the unit occupied.

POLICE DEPARTMENT - The department employs 26 sworn police officers (including the Chief) and 10 civilian
employees. The department is responsﬂ:)le for enforcing various criminal and traffic statutes as well as Iocal parking
laws. . . . S S

SERVICE DEPARTMENT —_T_'he department consists of a department head, a custodian, and an administrative assistant
position shared with the engineering departiment. The department head is responsible for the following divisions; ~ -

iii



Streets - The Street Division is responsible for the ongoing maintenance and improvement of the City's streets,
highways, alleys, storm maintenance facﬂmes and t:afﬁc 51gns and sxgnals The department includes 10 full-time
employees and 2 full-time mechanics. L T

 Utitity Inspection - A full-time utility mspector conducts appropnate mspecnons to ensure compﬁance with utlhty
standards. . . " . .

Water Plant and Distribution — These two dmsmns operate with a total of 10 full-time employees. The Plant division
is responsible for the treatment and ci1str1but1on of potable water to the City's approximiately 4,200 customers, The
Distribution division is responsible for mamtammg approximately 70 m1les of water lines throughout the Clty

Wastewater Plant and Collections - Thesc two divisions operate with 13 full-time employees. The divisions are
responsible for the collection and treatment of all sewerage withinthe Clty of Oxford (approxunately 3,900 customers)
and the maintenance of approximately 62 miles of sanitary sewer lines,

Refuse - The environmental specialist provides oversight of the City’s refuse, recycling, and related environmental
programs, as well as administration of the City’s urban forestry services. The City contracts with a private refuse
collection service to handle the solid waste collection and d1sposa1 activities for the City. In addition, the curbside
recycling pragram, which was initiated in 1991 continues to be well received by the residents of the City. The program
is viewed as an environmentally consczous means of controllmg refuse d:sposal costs and extendmg the life of the
landfill by reducing the stream of sohd waste

Ca ~

THE REPORTING STANDARDS:

The City's accounts are organized as funds and account groups. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with its own
self-balancing set of accounts; assets, 11ab1ht1es angd fund cqulty Followmg are t.he tlﬂes of these funds and account
gronups with a brief description.

Governmental Funds:

The general fund is the general operatmg fund of the City, It is used to account for al! financial Tesources tradmonally
associated with government which are not required to be accountcd for in another fund

The special revenne finds are used to account for revenues ,derived from specific taxes,”grants or other restricted
~ revenue sources. The uses and limitations 6f each specnal revenue fund are specified by 1oca] Ieglslatmn or state or
federal statutes. The City maintains fourteen special revenue funds. -

The_debr service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources used for, and the payment of, gencral
long-term principal, interest and related costs. The City has one debt service fund. ~

The capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or constfuction of major ~
capital facilities other than those financed by propnetary funds The City utihzes five cap1tal projects ﬁmds

Proprietary Funds:

The enterprise funds are used to account for c)perations that are financed and operated in 2 manner sinilar to private
business enterprises, where the intent of the govermng body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the
generzl public on 2 continning basis be financed or recavered pnmanly through nser cha.rges Thc Clty operates ‘three
enterprise funds. - _ _ . - -

The internal service funds are used 1o account for the financing of goods or services provided by one division or agency
to other divisions or agencies of government, generally ona cost-rennbursemenf basm The Cxty has two mtemai service

iv



funds, one for shared office and operatmg costs such as postaoe gasolme and copxer expense, and the other for
employees' group health insurance. ) ST

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments and/or other funds. The City has four agency funds.

Account Groups:

Fixed assets of the City, other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds, are accounted for in the general fived
assets account greup. General fixed assets exclude the City's infrastructure (roads, streets and bridges). Long-term
debt of the City, except that accounted for in the proprietary funds, is accounted for in the general long-term obligations
account group. These obhgatlons mclude spcc:]al assessment bonds payable accrued vacatlon and s1ck leave benefits,
and pension obhgatmns i . -

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING:

For financial reporting purposes the basis of accounting used by the City is in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units and are consistent with GASB Codified Section 1600,
"Basis of Accounting”. -

Governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are susceptible to accrual, that is, when they are both
measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized when the related liability is incurred except for interest on
long-term debt which is recorded when due, . :

The measurement focus for the City's proprietary funds is based on the flow of economic resources @11 assets and all .
liabilities). The accrual basis of accounting is utilized which recognizes revenues when earned and cxpenses when
incurred. : : . .-

The City's basis of accounting for budgetary purposes differs from generally accepted accounting principles in that
revenues are recognized when received, rather than when susceptible to accrual, expenses are reported when paid rather
than when a liability is incurred, and encumbrances are recorded as expenditures rather than as reservations of fund
balances. A reconciliation of the results of these two methods appears in Note 4. During the year all accounting policies
were applied consistently with those of the preceding year. Basis of reporting presentation and accountmg policies are
further explained in Notes 1 and 2, respectively. i -

ECONOMIC QUTLOOK

The locat Oxford economy continued to grow modestly during the year, mostly due to the fact that the primary
employment base is not subject to significant cyclical fluctuations. The largest employer in Oxford, Miami University,
generally provides stable employment despite any changes in the national economy. The primary source of the City’s
general fund revenues is the municipal income tax. Therefore, the City is fortunate to have a conslstem revenue strearn,
which provides a solid basis for ﬁnanc:lal planning decisions, both short-term and long-term.

CITY-WIDE INITIATIVES

The City continued its progress toward improved productivity and efficiency during 1999. During 1999 the City tackled
a wide and diverse range of issues and programs, many of which continue into 2000. Some of the key projects include:
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Community Park — In 1998 the City purchased a 113-acre undeveloped property just west of the city limits for just
under $700,000 for the purpose of developing what is to be the Cify’s major recreational commumty park. The need
for a community park was evidenced in both the recently completed Parks Master Plan and the Comprehensive Plan.
During 1999, the City evaluated development proposals for the new park and adopted a thrée-phasé approach to be
implemented over about ten years, subject to funding avaﬂablhty The plan calls for an investment of approximately
$3.5 million for Phase ] engineering design and construction. Phase I includes s;gmf' icant Hffastructure development

including grading and preparation of the | entire park land, and water, sewer road and lighting improvements. Most = '

importantly, Phase I also includes the development of 4 softball/basebeall fields, 6 soccer fields, a maintenance/storage
building for recreation equipment, and a shelter/restroom facility. Design work began in December 1999, and
construction is expected to begin in July, 2000 and be completed by Labor day, 2001. Phase II of the development
includes a family picnic area, basketball court, amphitheater, children’s play area, and 2 napure center. Phase T includes
basketball, tennis, volleybali, horseshoes, and shuffieboard court areas and a family sheiter at the southern end of the
park. Funding for the park development comes from $2,550,000 of the total of $3, 915,000 of general obligation bonds
issued in Qctober, 1999 (discussed below). The remamder w:l.l be ﬁmded frorn capltal and general fund Teserves.

Uptown Parks and Streetscape Capital Improvements - The City in 1998 formed commiftees fo address the poss1b1e
development of the two uptown parks and a possible Strectscape development for the Uptown Oxford business district.
These committees continned working imto 1999 during which the City adopted a proposal for Uptown parks
improvements which included a perfonnance stage, a watet fountain display, a granite engraved wall recognizing the
major events in the history of Oxford, and 2 memorial commemmorating local U.S. veterans, Construction documents
were completed and a construction contract was awarded in December, 1999 with completion scheduled for August,
2000. The total design and construction Costs are expected to be approximately $1.9. million, funded by $1,250,000 of
the general obligation bonds 1ssued iin October 1999 and the remamder fundcd most]y by general and cap1t31
improvement fund reserves.

Preliminary Streetscape design plans were presented to City Council and call for an investment in the fonr uptown -
blocks of the High Street area of approximately $5.1million. This cost included water and stormwater construction and -
included the connecting perimeter streets and alleys around High Street. Plans to initiate the treetscape program were

deferred pending completion of other projects and contingent upon Identlfymg a fundmg mechanism.

General Obligation Bonds — The City issued $3 915,000 of twenty-year general obhgatlon bonds on October 1999
for the joint purpose of funding the Community Park and Uptown parks projects. A portion of the debf was used for
costs of issuance with the remainder dedicated to the projects. This is the city’s first major general obligation bond
issuance and we successfully secured a rating of Al for the bonds from Moody 5 Imrestor Servmes, Inc

U.S.27 North ~ Detailed engineering design plans were being developed in 2000 toward the initial construction of Phase
I of a multiyear development of the U.S. 27 corridor heading two miles North to the City limits from Locust street. The .
total cost of the project, including design, is projected at $6,750,000. Engmeenng design of approximately $500,000
was funded by general capital reserves. Phase J is scheduled to begin in August, 2000 and includes water and sewer
improvements totaling $2.1 million, of which 80% is to be funded by Ohio Issue Tl money. "The remainder of the project
is contingent upon grant funding and includes expansion to a threc-lane road, sidewalk, curb and gutter unprovements
repaving, aod a bike path. If funding is secured, the project could be completed by year 2005. -

Year 2000 issue - As was the case for mahy other organizations, January 1, 2000 came and went with no recognizable
year-2000 mmpact for the City or the community. Successﬁ.li conversion to the year 2000 was a consequence of a well-
planned effort by City Manager Mark Roath and Management Informanon Services (MIS) director Miké Ritcher. The
City incurred an immaterial amount of costs in what was pnmaﬂly routme upgrades of computers and software.,

New MIS department — With the hiring of Mike Ritcher in May, 1999, the Mark Roath established a separate MIS
department dedicated to technology coordination, support and nnprovements in the City. In the Spring of 2000 Mr.
Ritcher completed a draft of a Technology Plan towa.rd pmvﬁmg a strategic plan for comprehensive and integrated
techuology solutions for the City’s fature. The c1ty s web site (www.citvofoxford.org) contmues to grow to become
an important communications device to reach out to its stakeholdcrs " =
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Lower Refuse rates — In April, 2000, the finance department presented City Council with a recornmendation to lower
most refuse rates by approximately 20% and to convert to unlimited refuse pickup for residential customers from the
present 2-can limit. The reduction was the result of a three-year effort to obtajn a $1 mitlion payment from the State
of Ohio for Miami University’s share of the City’s municipal landfill closure.. The Ohic EPA-mandaied closure of the
20-acre landfill cost $4 million m 1995-1996. Refuse rates were raised progressively for three years beginning in 1993
to fund the twenty-year debt service on the closure, of which the current debt outstanding on the closure totals $3.2°
million. The City also had to borrow in 1995 §1.5 million to place into a trust fund to meet OEPA “financial assurance’

requurements to assure funding for post-closure costs for 30 years. The 81 million received from the State was used in
August, 1999, to pay off the remaining $1.3 million outstanding on the original $1.5 million post- closure debt. This
meant refuse rates no longer needed to reflect the amount equivalent to the annual §1 35 ,000 payment on the debi.

Additionally, the OEPA issued new regulations relaxing the guidelines by which the government could qualify for post-
closure ‘financial assurance’ based upon its own fund balances. On March 28, 2000, the OEPA approved the City’s
application to qualify for these rules and released the funds in the trust, which had grown to $1.9 million. The City
intends to invest these funds and proportionally draw them annually to assist ini the funding of the outstanding closure
loan for the next 15 years. Combined, these two. transactions will allow the City to reduce the revenue stream needed
to cover refuse fund costs by approximately $300,000 animally. Thus the savings will be passed through to the refuse
customers in the form of lower rates beginning August 1, 2000. For example, the residential rate will drop from
$15.50/month to $12.44/month, with an increase of service to unlimited pickup. City Council approved the switch to
unkimited residential pickup partly to help resolve a residual trash problem in the Mile Square area which is in part a
consequence of rental tenants, many of whom attend Miami University .

DEPARTMENTAL INITIATIVES

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

* With the arrival of the new Engineering Director, Charles Petty, in January, 1999, major initiatives for the year mcluded _
the kickoff of design plans for the roadway widening of US 27 North, the uItravxolet d1smfec’uon system af the
wastéwater treatment plant, and the Uptown Parks redevelopment. The Engineering Department alsp completed the
design and construction of the Fairfield Road waterline extension, the High Sirest sanitary sewer replacement, and the
Reagh Way roadway project. The Engmcenng Department ‘also supervised the upgrade of the Clty water system
modeling software. X ) o S L R

In 2000, the Engineering Department will supervise the constriction of the Uptown Parks and the UV disinfection
system, If Issue II funding becomes available in August, 2000, as we expect, the utility upgrade portion of the US 27
North widening project will begin construction this fall.

FINANCE DEPARTMENT . _ .

The Finance department team continued its progress toward increasing productivity through computer and accounting
skills. The budget continued to be revised to become a professional document and fiscal planning tool. Continued
refinement occurred on the series of hundreds of small tasks performed in the finance department by computerizing or
otherwise streamlining them to condense the workload, thereby increasing productivity. In the Spring of 2000 the
department switched to a new bank for depository services as a result of a request for proposal process, institated the
ability for customers to pay by Visa and MasterCard, and presented the city council with a recommendation to lower
refuse rates (as previously discussed above), which was approved for implementation effective August 1, 2000.

FIRE/EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

During 1999, the department expanded it safety capabilities by purchasing a new grass ﬁre velncle in service, This
vehicle is equipped with a high-pressure pump-and 300 gallon water tank. It was used in service at the wildland fire at
nearby Hueston Woods. In cooperation with the Planning department’s inspection division; all of the Miami University
fraternities as well as all new businesses in the city were inspected again this year for life/safety violations. The
department continued to place emphasis on fire safety with station tours, school visits, as well as our annual poster
contest. The department placed a purchase order for a fire safety trailer to be used for training and demonstrations as
well as an order for a new 1,500 gallons-per-minute pumper to replace the aging 1975 American LaFrance pumper.
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Miami University The department took possession of the trailer in spring, 2000, and expects to received the new ;')umper
m the fall of 2000. The department continues to upgrade the level of trammg in the EMS d1v1slon as well as the
equipment available for serwce {o our citizens.

PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT _ )

The Personnel Department completed its Compensationfclhssiﬁcation study in 1999 with the approval by city council
of a salary pay band system in Novemnber. The Safety Committee sponsored fire extinguisher training and continued
in its accident review process. In 2000, the department will be developing 2 new performance evaluation, initiafe the
City's Employee Recognition program, and continue to 1mprovc the various person.nel pol:cws and procedures of the
City. - .

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION S¥STEMS DEPARTMENT

In 1999, the Management Information Systems Department was created and Michael Ritcher was hired in May, 1999,
as the Director. The major initiative for 1999 was coordinating the Year 2000 compliancy effoit énsuring all critical
and essential computers and functions were inventoried, assessed and if necessary, remediated. Contingency plans were
developed and a major emphasis on public awareness was conducted. Fortunately, year 2000 came and went without
a problem for the city and the community. Preparation efforts towards developing a Technology Master Plan included
a citywide computer neesds assessment equ]pmcnt inventory and product resea.rch for a major computer network
upgrade planned for 2000. - s

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT

The Oxford Parks and Recreation Department embraced a year of forming commumty parmerships. Programs were
opened up for Miami University graduate students to learn *hands-on’ experiences in early childhood education, health
and physical education, and special events. Cooperate projects. brought fiaisons with the Lions Club, Rotary Club,
Oxford Talawanda Cornmriunity Services, Visitor’s Bureau, Talawanda School District, and local businesses. Many joint
programs were provided with the Oxford Police Department to reach middle school youth such as mountain biking,
Hooked on Fishing, Not on Drugs wall chmbmg and others. Agreements were formed to bring together area youth

Community financial sponsorship increased to fund special events, including an expanded Fourth of July celebration,
Community Development Block Grant funds were utilized for upgrading two neighborhoods parks, and the national
“Make a Difference Day” campaign targeted four park projects to make Oxford a better place to live. Many activities
were brought back to the community center, with building use up approxunately 50%. Programs and participation
increased, the concession at the pool was re-opened, and all combined enabled the department to surpass 1999 revepue
budget.

PLANNING DEPAR TMEN T

In 1999 the Planning Department began the process of re- writing the City's zoning code. This effort includes a great
deal of public input and Iand use policy review. The Planning Department also began the task of managing the Oxford
portion of a cross-county transportation corridor for the northern portion of Butler County. The historic district design
guidelines were completed in 1999. These guidelines help to define the preservation expectations for work done within
the historic districts. The Planning Department completed their initial orgatization of the City's GIS system. This
system provides mapping capabilities throughout the City that heretofore have not beex available. The GIS systern will
ultimately be linked to the permit review and tracking database as well as the Engineering department’s CAD system.

POLICE DEPARTMENT

1999 wasg a year of great achlevoment and advancement for the Oxford Division of Police. Commuinity policing
activities were at the forefront of the Division’s efforts to wansition froin bemg a call-driven police : agency to becommg'
problem-solvers for the community. Continuing activities for 1999 mcludcd two “Pig Roasts,” one in the Fali and one
in the Spring, numerous Ice Cream Sogials delivered in various ne1ghborhoods throughout the community aimed at
integrating neighbors with neighbors and neighbors with police, Hooked on Fishing, the Talawanda-Oxford Police |
School Resource Program, Respect for Law Camp, Cops, Kids and Canmmg, two Citizen’s Police Academies, and the
Annual Miami Mobile Home Park Clean-up. In addition, 1999 saw additional accomplishments mncluding: the
establishment and full year of operation of the Citizen’ s Adwsory Panel; the purchase of eight mobile data laptop
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computers for police vehicles and planning phase towards Mobile Data Dispatch; purchase of 2 new Computer Aided
Dispatch and Records Management Systen; completion of the administrative wing remodeling project; and significant -
efforts throughout the year to prepare police corputer files for the year 2000 event. In 1999, the department filled three
police officers vacancies bringing the authorized full-time strength to twenty-six officers. Among the Police

Department’s many goals and objectives for 2000 are: (1) a full transition to computer aided dispatch, (2) a full
transition to the department’s new records management system, and (3) to train personnel install in pohce vehicles,and -

make operational the mobile data laptop computers.
SERVICE DEPARTMEN T

Street Maintenance Division : ’

The worst winter storm of 1999 occurred January 2°%, 1999, with a total of five mches of s snow followed by layers of
ice over four days. The street maintenance division used 900 tons of delcmg salt as snow amounts were greater than )
normal for the year. Because of average temperatures, about 25 tons of cold mix was used for pothole repairs. With
very dry summer conditions, crews were able to complete several construction pro;ects The division built and paved
three parking lots and the street-paving program was started in May after classes at Miami Umver51ty wete completed
for the spring. A new fueling system was installed at the garage for City velucles The division was also involved in
remodeling projects at the Courthouse and the City Building. Leaf pick up went better than normal due to the dry fall
conditions, however, volumes were down slightly due to dry leaves compacting more eﬁic:ently than wet leaves

Water Production Division , ) : -
Improvements for 1999 include: addition of a back up chiorination unit for water 'disinfection; compilation and
distribution of Oxford’s first annual Water Quality Report and the instaliation of & pneumatic system including a bead.
blast and recovery unit used in plant maintenance projects. Production well improvements include installation of 300
feet of well screen in production well #1 and abandonment of antiquated well #4. The Water Plant Division was active
in planning the rehabilitation and lead/chromium abatement of Oxford’s half million-gallon steel water storage tank in.
2000. This project is sirnilar to the rehabilitation of the two million-gallon storage tank completed in 1999. Co

Water Distribution Division -

The Water Distribution Division ¢ompleted 2 large number of water rnain repairs in 1999. The Division mstaﬂed 500
feet of 8 inch water main on the new Reagh Way project; worked with contractors on the Fairfield Road 16 inch main
installation; installed 633, 5/8inch pit meters; six 1 inch pit meters; six 1 % inch pit meters and seven 2 inch pit meters
for the meter change cut program. The division also razed the #4 pump house and assisted in abandonmg producnon
well #4.

Utility Inspector s ' ) s : —

The Utility Inspector was involved in four Engmeermg and Service Dcpartment projects in 1999 These projects were:
Fairfield Road 16 inch Water Line Extension, the development of Reagh Way, High Street sanitary sewer replacemem'
and the 1999 Street (asphaif) Resurfacing program. Various areas of inspéctions requiréd for these projects were: water
distribution, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, street rf:surfacmg and curb, gutter and sidewalk. Inspectlons were also
conducted for these construction areas during daily inspections of private development constmc’ﬂon n Oxford, as well
as ensuring compliance with OEPA’s Backflow/Cross Connection Program.

Wastewater Treatment Plant Division
Several substantial projects were completed in 1999. The largest projects include the instaliation of SCADA (data
and computer control} on the Grit removal equipment, removal of the underground fuel storage tanks and
replacement with an above ground storage umit, and design of the ultra-violet system for dlsmfectlon of the plant’s
effluent. The division continued addition of concrete riprap to the stream banks for erosion control, Among other
noteworthy projects: Aeration tank aerator replacemcnts rebuxldmg of the pnmary digester heat exchanger and
plant capacity/performance study.



Wastewater Collections Division ‘

The Wastewater Collection Department cleaned a total of 148,344 feet of sanitary sewer pipe to clear blockages and
help maintain flow to the Wastewater Treatment Plan{. The video lateral inspection unit was used to isolate and
diagnose problems in residential plumbing. Used in conjunction with the main line equipment, a total of 28,281 feet
of sewer pipe was inspected and recorded. The Collection Department spent 1,331 hours inspecting, repairing and.
maintaining the collection system. A total of 71 manholes were repaired or raised to help control inflow and infiltration.
The division participated in the Habitat for Humanity project by installing approximately 500 féet of new sanitary sewer -
pipe, 200 feet of service lateral and four manholes. In 2000, Division staff will be attending 14 weeks of training
sponsored by the Operator Training Committee of Ohio to keep abreast of new trends and changes in the mdustry

Refuse and Recycling services

The City uses an independent contractor for its solid waste and recychng services, and regularly achieves residential
recycling rates of 15-17%._ These percentages are considered excellent for a residential community. In 1999, the
contracted waste and recyrclmg services was offered for bid for the next five-year period, and the prev;ous contractor
was approved for a new contract to become effective beginning January 1, 2000. T

Administration ' B

The addition of the MIS director and the filling of other staff vacancies created the need for additional office space in
the Municipal Building. In the fall of 1999, the second floor of the Munn:lpal Building was remodeled to establish
offices for planning and inspection and other staff. Previously, the City Council Chamber was located on the second
floor of the Municipal Building. A new council bench was designed and instalied at the new Council Chambers at the
Oxford Courthouse, a few blocks from the Municipal building. With this move, the audio system was relocated to the '
Courthouse and enhanced to provide betier quality sound for meetings, With progress made in the creation of a public
access channel, City Council approved and codified an ordinance that will guide the use of the City’s public access cable
television channel, : .

FINANCJAL INFORMATION

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The City of Oxford's budgetary accounting system was designed to provide reasonable assurance that:

1. Accurate, reliable financial statements and reports are prepared providing accountability for assets and for
the proper management of the uses of the City's resources; and

2. The City's assets are protected against loss and unanthorized use or disposition.
The concept of reasonable assurance states that internal controls should be evaluated using the following g:r_itéria:

1. The expense associated with providing the internal controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived from their implementation; and

2. The evaiuation of the offsetfing costs'and beneﬁts mvolves cstlmates and judgment by the City
Administration and the Finance Director. = ~

All internal control evaluations occur within this framework. It is the belief of the administration and financiat
management personnel that the City's financial controls adequately safeguard existing assets and provide reasonable
assurance of the proper recording of financial transactions. The objective of budgetary controls is to ensure compliance
with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by Oxford's Clty Cotncil. The City’s
appropriated budget is subject to financial control by integrating the budget into the financial accounting system. The
legal level of budgetary control (that is, the level at transfers of budget amounts cannot be made without leglslatwe
approval) is established at the departrent level. The allocation of appropriations aniong departments within the same
function and fund may be modified by the City Manager with the concurrence of the Finance Director for amounts up



to §10,000. Amounts over 310,000 require legislativé approval. Budgetary control is maintained through the
encumbering of estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of formal purchase orders to vendors. Encumbered
appropriations carry forward to the following year(s) until expended or liquidated. Unencumbered appropriations lapse
at year-end. Open encumbrances as of year-end that have not been included as an accrued item are reported as ‘
reservations of fund balances in this report for governmental funds.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules, mcluded in the financial section of this rcport the City contintiesto * -

meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 3
As a recipient of federal, state and county assistance, the City also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal
control structure is in place to insure compliance with applicable laws and regulations governing the use of said funds.
The internal control structure is subject to contlnuous evaluatlon by the City" s management and the Fmance Department
staff.

As a part of the City's audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal conrol structure as well as to
determine that the City has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The infernal control report on the 1999 andit
has not yet been issued. For the City’s audit for the prior year ended December 31, 1998, the recommended
improvements to the internal control structure, in a number of instances, have been adopted. Management values and
appreciates the information provided by our auditors and we continually strive to unprovc and suengthen the ]
comprehensive framework of infernal accounting controls. ‘

GENEMGOWWW - T ST -
General Fund balance

The General fund balance at year-end 1999 was, $3,971,259, which represented an increase of $158,308 over 1998's
balance of $3,812,951. Some of the ending balance may be considered for investments in future capital improvement
programs including the aforementioned U.S. Route27 and Community Park developments

General Government Revennes

Taxes continiie t0 be the primary revenue source for the General Fund. The major source of tax revenue is the City's
1.75% municipal income tax, which was increased from 1.00% effective January 1, 1994. In 1999, the income tax
revenues totaled $5,093,693, an increase of $323,840 over 1998's amount of $4,769,853. The increase is a reflection -
of general cost-of-living wage increases in the community, plus modest job growth in 1999. Income tax accounts for
-57% of general government revenues. Property tax revenues constitute only 6. 8% of general govemmeut rcvénues as
the majority of total local property taxes assessed is levied to fund educational institutions. Of the total overlappmg
property tax rate in Oxford of 58.07 mills, only 6.3%, (3.65 mills), goes to the City._ Intergovemmental revenues
decreased primarily as a result of the receipt of an approximate $500,000 housiiig grasit in 1998, offset by an mcreased
allocation of local county reyenue sharing. Fines, costs and forfeitures decreased by $114,916 due to a dehberate -
relaxation of rigid parking patrol enforcement in order to meet vns1tor—fnend]y policy goals, partmularly as it benefits
returning custormers to local businesses, and visitors t0 Miami Umvemty events. The decrease n Other revenue is a
result of a worker’s compensation insurance refund in 1998, o T . T
The following schedule presents a summary of genéral fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund, and capital
projects funds revenues for the years ended December 31, 1999, and 1998, and the amount and percentage of change
in relation to prior year revenues. . . o L. ~

xi



General 199I9 % of 1998 Net % of
Goverament Revenues Amount TFotal Amount Change change
Property and othertaxes | $610.860 6.79% $590.466 $20.394 345% -
Municipal income taxes : 5093693 { 56.59% ! 4,769.853 333.840 6.79%
Intergovernmental 7 1.797.751 1997% | 2283530 485788 | -21.27%
Charges for services - 519316 | 5.77% 536,202 -16.886 -3.15%

i Fines, costs & forfeitures 211,638 2.35% 326.554 -114916 | -3519%
Licenses permits & insp. ~  _ 306,403 3.40% 253,040 52,765 20.80%
Special assessments 7.818 0.09% 7.991 -173 -2.16%
Interest _ 387,413 4,30% 349,681 37,734 10.79%
Contributions 47.309 0.53% 20,919 26390 1 126.15%
Other 18.863 G.21% 226.991 =208.128 | -91.69%

Total _1 $9.001.068 100% 1 $9.365.836 | &-3__6_4,76§ 3.89%
1 l | _

General Govermment Expenditures

The following schedule presents a summery of expenditures of the general fund, special revenue funds, the debt service
fund and capital project funds for the years ended December 31, 1999, and 1998, and the change in relation to prior year
amounts: - . R R ST

General 1999 % of 1998 Net Yo of
Government Expenditures Amount Total Amount Change change
Security of persons & property $2921.136 | 38.45% { $2.712 829 $208.307 7.68%
Public health services : 65,820 0.87% 74.364 -8.544 | -1149%

1 Leisure time activies 703,067 9.26% 562 200 140,867 |1 25.06%
Community environment 811.216 | 10.68% 975852 -164,636 | -16.87%

| Transportation’ 645.045 8:49% 576,046 68,999 | 11.98%
L General government 1234501 | 16.25% 1.176.293 $8.208 4.95%
Capital outlay , 1214492 | 1599% | 2065350 | -850.858 | -41.20%
Principal retirement : 1000 1  0.01% 1,000 g 0.00%
Interest and fiscal charges - 203 0.00% 270 - 671 -2481%
Total $7,59ﬁ180 égp% $8,1=44.204 -547.724 1 6.73%

| | |

Security of persons and property increased principally as a result of filling vacancies in 1999 for police patrol officers
including officers hired and qualifying for federal COPS grant funding. Leisure time activities increased because of
increased program and other services provided by the Recreation department under new department head Gail Brahier.
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Community environment expend:tures decreased reflecting the aforementioned housing grant program conducted in
1998, offset by an increase in Community Developrent Block Grant (CDBG) expenditures. The ‘CDBG | cxpenses

increased because the City’s granting authority was convérted from the State'of Ohio to Bitler County, resulting in @ |

one-time doubling of grant receipts in 1999, Cap1ta1 outlay decreased by _$850,858 principally because 1999 was
dedicated to planning and engineering construction design for the major projects of Uptown Parks, Comrmunity Park,

and U.8. 27, which are schedujed to commence in 2000 Addmonally, the decrease is parﬂy attnbutable io the $58’? 000

spent in 1998 for the purchase of the 113-acre land for the Commumty Park.
ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS

The City operates three enterprise funds consisting of the water treatment and dlStl'lb'llt!OI'l utility, 'thc wastewater
collection and treatment utility, and refuse collection and d1sposal enterpnse

Water Fund

The water utility includes the water treatment plant and the water distribution system. Water fund revenues increased
from $2,743,303 to $2,969,727 (8%) in 1999. The majority of the increase is a result of collection of a prior year
dispute with our major customer, Miami University, which was previously cons1dered uncoilectible. Water fund
operating expenses decreased from $1,820,484 to $1,741,054 in 1999. The decrcase 1s a result of a combmanon of
slight reductions in a number of expenses. . - ;

Sewer Fund

The wastewater utility includes a sewage treatment plant and a collection systém. Sewer fund revenues incréased from
$3,478,964 to $ 3,624,610 (4%) in 1999. A portion of the increase is a result of the aforementioned cc)]lecnon ofa prior
year dispute with Miami University which was previously considered uncollectible. Sewer fund operating expenses
decreased modestly from $2,109,083 to $2 074,328, Debt service payments began in 1999 in the total amount of
$572,000 related to the 1998 sewer plant improvements and the Sandra Drive collection system improvements.
Remaining net income is targeted for cash outflows for the principal portion of debt service (see debt section later in
this memo) and future capitai merovements as planncd when the sewer rate mcrease (appmxunanng 110%) was
. implemented in March, 1997, _ - - : : .
Refuse Fund

Refuse fund revenues decreased from $1,357,892 to $1,337,997 in 1999. In 1999, the City received a $1 million

payment paid by the State of Ohio (through Miami University) for the Umversxty § share of the landfill closure and post-

closure costs. The $1 million of contributed capital will be invested and pr:manly used wnth 2 portion of annual

revenues to fund payments (for the remaining 15 years) on The outstandmg 4.35% 1oan for the landfill closure. Refuse 7

fund expenses increased from $853,123 fo $936,796. The increase is a result of increases in contractual services for
solid waste disposal, including a schedule 5% increase per the confract, the last year of the contract. In 1999 the contract
for solid waste disposal service was bid and the city received favorable terms for ifs next ‘two-year contract with rmmmal
cost increases. . | W -

- -~ - el - [ o - R o -

As of May 20, 1996, the City’s municipal landfill was ceruﬁed as closed by the Ohio EPA. The total acmal cost of the
closure and estimated cost of future post-closure expenditures have been recorded in accordance with GASB 18, which
requires these costs to be expensed to retained earnings. (This was done in a previous year). This is the primary reason
why there was 2 deficit retained earnings of $3,400,959 in this fund at the end of the year

-

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Major debt transactions daring the year
In Angust, 1999, the City paid in full the remaining outstanding balance ($1,350 ,000) of the general obligation bond

in the Refusg fund. This 20-year debt was originally issued at 6. 38% in Deccmber ‘1995, and the proceeds were placed

in a trust fund to fulfill legal requirernents for “financial assuranice™ in Sonjutiction with the OEPA-~mandated closure
of the municipal landfill. post-closure care costs. As previously discussed, Chio Administrative Code requires landfill
owners to provide financial agsurance of funding for post-closure costs for monitoring the landfill for 30 0 years after the
closure. The funds for retiring the debt came from a $1 million payment from the State of Olno through Miami
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University for their share of the landfill closure costs. Addmonally, a loan of $150,000 was made from the General
Fund to the Refuse fund. The remainder came from the Refuse fund balance. No gain or Joss was incurred on the early
retirement of the debt.

| )
As previously mentioned, in October, 1999, the City issued 33,915,000 of inSured 20-yedr general obligation bonds for
the purpose of funding major capital reconstruction of the Uptown I’arks and new construction of the Commumty Park.
The City was pleased to receive a bond rating of Al from Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. f?r the issuance of the bonds.

Under cutrent state statutes, the City's unvoted general obligation bonded debt issuances are subject to a legal debt
tirnitation of 5.5% of total taxable value of all property in the municipal corporation. When approved by the voters, net
debt may not exceed 10.5% of the fotal value of the property in the corporation.” As of Détember 31, 1999, the City's
legal debt margin for unvoted debt was $6,671,144 and for all debt was $16,294,911,

Existing Debt

Debt outstanding at year-end that was issued prior to 1999 included the followrng (Refer to the notes to the ﬁnancxal
statements for more detail regarding the City’s borrowmg activity) '

General Oblipation : :
Existing General obhgatlon debt includes $2, 000 of spemal assessmient debt with government comrmtment for whrch
the final year of payment is 2000. - :

Ohio Water Development Authority (QWDA) borrowings '
Qutstanding OWDA debt includes construcnon ]oans drawn for the followmg caprta] rmprovemen‘ts

Year.end -

Period of _ - - Principal
Borrowing  Pumpese | o N Outstanding
1987 Sewer Plant improvements TR TR e T T 2471605 0 T T
1995-1997 Landfill closure loan . - 73,199,822 .
1997 Sewer Collection system nnprovements T T 623,486

at Patterson, Campus, and South College Avenues T
1998 _ Sewer Collection system improvements at Sandra Drwef 298,607
1997-1999 ©  Sewer Plant Equalization Basin and Influent Pump Station 6,194,210

Revepue bonds
There was $11,640,000 of water utrhty revemie Bonds outst.andmg pertaining to tWenty year water bonds issued in 1992

which were issued to refund and defease former revenue debt ongmally 1ssued to finance constmctron of' the new water
plant in 1988.

Landfill Post-Closure [iability =~ o -

In compliance with GASB 18 we have recorded as'a liability i in the Refuse fund the cost of ﬁ.lture years’ post-closure
monitoring of the landfill, which was certified as closed by the Ohio EPA in 1996 The habrhty at year—end for the
remaining 27-year post-closure monitoring period was §1 »236,221.7 i

I K MANAGEMENT

L e w

The City has contracted with prominent national insurance carriers for the provision of underlying bodily injury,
personal injury, property damage, and general liability coverages. _In addition, the Cify nidintains excess general liability
and public officials' coverage, vehicle lability coverage, mumcrpal landfill property and liability, and police professional
liability coverage. An annual review of the scope of the City's activities is conducted with the help of the insurance
carrier’s representatives and the City’s insurance agents. Annually the Clty also hires an outsrde insurance consultant
to perform a study to review the changes in the insurance coverages and | improve the insurance coverage. The adequacy
of insurance coverage is revigwed fo tosure appropnate coverage ‘ona cost-benef' t basrs For cost management
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purposes the City’s risk insurance services have been offered for bid for a period generally for a three-year period. The
process will occur again in late 2000 for the insurance penod beginning 2001.

Regarding claims management, when a notice of claim arises, in every instance, it is referred to the insurance company,
and claims monitoring is reviewed both by the administration and by the City's legal counsel where appropriate to assure |
that the City's interests are protected. | ,

CASH MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS =~ .

FRPE. - [

Cash and investments are managed under the goals of safety, liquidity, and yield in that order, as stipulated by the City's
legally adopted investment policy. All City cash (except that which is restricted) is pooled to maximize investment
return. Amounts above a minimum level are swept daily from the general checking account to an SEC-regulated U. S..

Treasury money matket fund. The City’s investmeni in the money market fund 15 100% hqmd accessible on a daﬂy
basis. . . ‘ . oo ) ) :

As required by underlying trust or indenture agreements, restricted cash and investments are segregated into separate
accounts and investments made are in accordance with the agreements. At December 31, 1999, the City has two
restricted trust accounts, maintained for the 1992 Water Revenue Bond indenture and for the 1995 Landfili Post-closure
trust fund, to comply with Ohio EPA regulations. As of March 28, 2000, the Ohio EPA approved the application by
the City to meet the financial assurance requirements based on fund balances and related debt-to-equity ratios as of
December 31, 1998. As of that date, the OEPA terminatéd the landfill trust agreement, releasing the funds to the City.
Annual submission to the OEPA of compliance with the find balance and debt to. equlty ratios is required and the C:ty
fully expects to meet requirements in the future. The City intends to invest the funds in accordance with its investrment
policy to be used for Refuse fund purposes including, among other items, future repayments of the OWDA Landﬁll
closure loan. -

Investments of the deferred compensation plan are determined by the employees who are plan participants. The City
complies with State laws governing the collateralization of deposits.  See Note 6 to the financial statements for
additional information on deposits and investments. As reflected in the balance sheet as of Decernbcr 31, 1999 the
City's cash resources were divided between cash and investments as follows:

Restricted- Held

Unrestricted by Trusiee . Total .. ._ FPercenfage _
Cash $21,213,049  $29.816 7 ' $21242865 = B7.5%
Investments 0. 3.044483 3044483 1 125% . .. .. ..

Total 20210049 UE3.074209 o . §24287348  AWOO% . .. . .

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

The general purpose financial statements of the City of O%ford were audited by Clark, Schaefer, Hackett and Company,

CPA’s, in compliance with State statirtes. The auditors® unqualified opinion on the general purpose financial statements

is included in the financial section of this report. The auditors’ reports related specifically to internal controls and

compliance with applicable laws and regulauons are presented in a separate report which may be obtamcd from their
_Cincinnati, Ohio office. ~ . 7. . .7, . e e o ) A

GFOQA Certificate of Achievement Award
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of ~
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Oxford, Ohie for its comprehensive annual financial
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report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards in state and local government financia! reporting. To be awarded _
a Certificate of Achievement, a govemmental unit must prepare an easily readable and efficiently organized

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) whose contents satisfy alf program standards. The report must satisfy - '

both generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements respective o the reporting
entity,

The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition iri the area of govcrnmental fmanmal repornng, and
its attainment is a significant accomplishment by a governmcntal unst ’

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Oxford has received 2 Certificate of
Achievement for the last fifteen consecutivé years (years ended 1984-1998). We belleve this report conforms to the -
reporting standards set forth by the GFOA. We are subm]ttmg our current CAFR to the GFOA for revu:w and
determination of eligibility for a certificate for 1999

R - PR

The publication of this comprehensive annual financial report is indicative of the City's commitment to provide
significantly enhanced financial information and accounrablhty to the cmzens ns e!ected offiaals Czry management
and investors. - - :
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independent examination of these financial statements. .
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Certificate of -

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to -

City of Oxford,
Ohio
For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report .
for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 1998

_ A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial =
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers -
Association of the United States and Canada to . .
government, units and public employee retirement
systerns whose comprehensive annual financial |
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accoynting -
ard financial reporting. -~ -

President

e

Executive Direcior -
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Clark,Schaefer, Hackett&Co.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council _
City of Oxford: - : T

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Oxford as of and
for the year ended December 31, 1999 as listed in the table of contents. These gen€ral purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Ouf respons:b:hty 15 to express an opm:on on
these general purpose financial stateménts based on our audit. - B
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmenr Aud:tmg Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financtal statements are free of material misstaternent. "An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates -
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose ﬁnanc1a1 statement presentatton
‘We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion. the general purpose financial statements referréd to above present fairly, in all materfal
respects, the financial position of the City of Oxford as of December 31, 1999 and the results of its

operations and ‘cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then endcd in conforrmty w1th -

generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 1, 2000,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial repomng and our tests of its. comphance
with certain provisions of laws, regu]atlons contracrs and grants.

Our audit was made for the purpose of fonming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements ~ - -

taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and
schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional dnalysis and are not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements. _Such information has been subgeg:ted_;o the
anditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the gencml purpose {mancial statements taken as a-
whole. : - -

. We did not audit the introductory and statistical information as listed in the table of contents and therefore
€Xpress o opinion on it.

CLA, Sihte, Hukiar 5

i

Cincinpati, Ohio * -~ - ' N T
May 1, 2000 L . T

Sixteenth Floor, 105 East Fourth Street, Cincinhati, OH 45202-4003, 513/241.3111, PAX S13/2a1-1212
CINCINKATI COLUMBUS, DAYTOR . MIDDLETOWN ~  SPRINGFIELD



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. The following general purpose financial statements, along with thé notes to the general pﬁrpose |
financial statements, present an overview of the City’s financial position at December 31, 1999
and the results of operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended.



CITY OF OXFOBD, OHIO.

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31,1999 ~ 7 ) C s

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt
Genera} Revenue” Servsce

Capital

- Projects

o =T e T e

Assets and Other Debiis

Assets: . . - : ,
Equity in pooled cash and eash equivalents b 3,353,132 1,424,612 2,142
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent - - 140
Receivables: — ) .

Taxes _ , S me8g20. s -

Accounts : : 54,521 187 -
Special assessments : : - ) - P 2,907
Interest ) o o - . - -
Due from other governments : _68;523' : 34,051 -
Prepaid items : - - ' - -
Supplies inventory . . o - 56,821 -

Deferred charges } : - T I

Restricted assets:

Cash with trustee _ . . - - ST ) T
Investments with trustee S - - o0

Fixed assets (net, where applicable,

of accumnulated depreciation) 7 . -
Advances to other funds o - ©o300000 0 - .

Other Debits: .
Amounts available in debt service fund N - - - -
Amount to be provided for retirement of : i 7 ' '

general long-term obligations - -

7,579,463

Total assets and other debits, - o _ $ 4644796 1,515,671 5,189

7,625,671



Fidueiary

Account Groups S
T General T Total
Intemnal General " Long-Term ~ ~ (Memorandum

Proprietary Fund Types -Fund Type

-

Enterprise ~ Service Agency  Fixcd Assets . Obligations - Only)

8,404,588 449,066 46 ) A L= 21,213,049
- Ce - .- C e = C e e m e 140
- .- _—— - ... - .8B68620

525,796 4,161 - : - - - . 584,665 .

62,569 - - - . - - 111,684
61,020 . - N e - <. - 61,020

- - - - : .- - 102,574

17,956 - - - T - - 17,956

- 104,460 10,419 - - - : - 171,700

147358 U S - . 147358

29,676 R R -
3,044,483 et e g .3,044483

28343.572 © 12,805 . - . T,015343 - - 35471720

400,000 - - ST B 700,000

- - - - 2,142 . . 2,142

-

- - . . - 4382325 . 4382325 .. U.T°C

41,141,478 476,451 ) 46 7115343 4,384,467 . 66,909,112

{Continued)




CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES,
DECEMBER 31, 1999 - =
(CONTINUED)

Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Claims payable
Retainage payable
Accrued salaries payable
Capital leases payable
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Deferred contributed capital
Accrued interest payable
Matured interest payable
Payable from restricted assets:
Landfill post-closure care payable
OWDA loans payable
Mortgage revenue bonds payable
Special assessment bonds payable with '
governmental commitment
Compensated absences payable
Undistributed money
Pension obligation
General obligation bonds payable
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

Fund Equity and Other Credits:
Contributed capital
Investments in general fixed assets
Retained eamnings: o
Reserved for replacement and improvement
Unreserved
Fund balances:
Reserved for advance
Reserved for encumbrances -
Reserved for inventory
Unreserved
Total fund equity and other credits

Total liahilities, fund equity and other credits

AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

Special Debt

The notes to the financial statements are an intepral part of this statement.

-

. Capatal
General Revenue Service Projects
21,854 14,210 - 20,500
3325 0 0 -U o 109556
.- - - 6,367
61,507 4940 - -
26856 3755 - .-
535,718 CT. T 2,907 46,208
- - 140 .
$ 24,277 3362 . - .-
- 150,000 - -
673.537 176267 3047 182,77
T 300,000 - -
© 256,201 24,110 - 2615662
o - 7 56,821 - ' i
3415,058 1,258,473 2,142 4,827,288
3,971,259 1,339,404 2,142 7,442,950
4,644,796 1515671 5,180 7625671



Fiduciary

Proprietary Fund Types | Fund Type

Account Groups - o -

T Y T General’ T Towl 7
Internal ] General Long-Termm ™ = (Memorandum

Enterpnise  Service .. Agency N Fixed Asset . OE_I-i__gé:Li—,qns Only)

70,372 _ 7,159 S . e T 134,185
82,788 " - T T e e e e oL 195669

- 46,882 . - T - 46,882
- 10,758 e e e e = oITI2S
19,066 = L - .4 e -~ . B5513

- 7,877 St e Lo TR
11,899 - B ot X1 1)

- - - T - 584,833
62,569 . - T = s e oLl 62560
57638 _ T - - - - . 57638

- . - B - - - .- - B R -,—: R - - 7- . i- 1_40 kS
1,236,221 3 - - - - 1236221
12,787,730 .. - e e - 12,787,130
11,640,000 - ST S .= - 11,640,000

- - - - S . 2,000 D 2,000 .
141,266 - TR oo -339.389 _ 508,294

- - 7. .46 - - 46
47275 - S o e -eso= 128078 ¢ 175353 E

- - .- .- .. 3915000 3915000
550,000 U U e e e el 700,000

= =X e U B A LN A

26,717,582 . 61,918 4 It 4384467 ’ 2iesses T

T - 7 Lt teees T F ;L

8,971,337 SRR X740 v
- - wem - 41115343 - 1115343

160,171 - - 2 N T R

5202388 . 414,533 - - ... o ..s708921
) - e e = o s .300,000

. o , e - 2895073
- o S e - cae el il L . = e = Lt L 5-6’82]‘ .
- - e = 9502961

14,423,806 . 414,533 . - 7115343 L U 38709527

41,141,478 476,451 7115343 | 3384,467 66509112
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CITY -OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES .
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues:

- Property and other taxes
Municipal income taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines, costs and forfeitures
Licenses, permits and inspections
Slpecial assessments
Interest
Contributions
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Security of persons and property
Public health services
Leisure time activities
Community environment
Transportation
General government

Capital outlay

Debt Service:
Principal retirement
interest and fiscal charges

‘Total expenditures .

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (nses):
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Operating transfers in
Operating tranfers out

Total other financing sources {uses) .

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance at beginning of year as restated

Increase in inventory reserve
Residual equity transfer

Fund balance at end of year

5

$

18863

(3,088,764)

_ - Total

Special Debt Capital  (Memorandum
General . _Revenue Service Projects _Only)
610,860 ; - . ' 610,860°

5,093,693 - - Ta 5,093,693
1,223,428, . 543,474 - 30849 1,797,751
149,005 370,261 .50 519,316,
141062 70576 - 211,638
306,405 - - - 306405

.56 1242 7818 .

289,359 . 45,806, 115 52,135. 387415

: - - 29,865 o 17,444 47,300
14,463 4,400 ] i

7828275 1064382 691 _ 107,720 _ "9,001,068 .
12508054 13,082 - - 2,921,136

| 65,820 - - - L 65830
37590 665477 - - 703,067

434232 326984 - - - 811,216
L L 645,045 ; ; 645,045
1,234,501 ) 1,238,501
: ; - - 1,214,492 1214492

; - 1,000 - 1,000
S 203, . P
4,730,197 1,650,588 1,203 1,214,492 7,596,480
3,098078 (5862060~ (512) (1,106,772) ~~ 1,404,588
. ; ~ 3915000 © 3,915,000
- 783,000 - 2,444,764 3.227,764

(2,948,764) |, (140,000). = -

C(2,948,764) 643,000 - 6359764 .. 4054000
49314 _ S6794  (512) 5252992 " 5,458,588
3812951 1,289366 2,654 2,189,958 7,294,929

L ams - v oo
8994 (8.994) © : - S
3971259 1,339,404 2,142 7,442,950 12,755,755

The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 1999

General Fund

S.pecwl Revenue Furds

" Variance “Varfance
Revised Favorable Revised o Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable). Budget N Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: ) T . oo
Property and other taxes  ~ . 611,200 610,860 L. (340) - -
Municipal income taxes 4,985,600 5017581 31,98t T " -
Intergovernmentzl _ 825,699 . 1,115,429 289,730 630,891 560,581 (61,310)
Charges for services o , 258912 212,507 {46,405) T 372800 372,578 (222)
Fines, costs and forfeitures 185,000 156,912 7 (28,088) " 152,000 70,8867 . {6L114)
Licenses, permits and inspections 240,400 268,920° 28,520 S P -
Special assessments L - S - - - - - - - -
Iriterest _ . 400,000 289359 (110641} 3375, T 45,804 12,629
Contributions - 100 100 20,100 29,863 ~ 9,765
- Other 2,800 10,463 7,663 500 2,975 . 2,475
Total revenues - 7509611 7682131 172,520 LI8vaes  L0oLesd _ GTyTny 7
Expenditures: _
Current: ) ’ :

Security of persons and prnperty 3,196,293 3,077,573 _. 118,720 . 21,700, 17,699~ © 4,001

Pubtic heaith services S EO b e 14| _66,3007 © 7 _ ~ 6,000 ) - - -

Leisure time activities .- 33263 9923 . 3340 692,172 684,139 T B0

Community environment 623,500 .. 502,276 121,224 870,677 " ass 968_ o 5 13.709

Transportation - R - L. 744,769 675 03 L " 69,266

Generai govemnment . 1,723,640 1,360,110 363 530 - i -

Capital outlay i - - - - - - -

Debt service: . - ) . ) -
Principal retirement - - - - - - - . -
Interest and fiscal charges ) - - - - - - -

Total expenditures T56a8096 5036182 612814 | 2329318 L7349 Ts0s889°
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures _ 1,860,615 2,64594% 785334 (1,139,852)  (642,640) 497212
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of bonds . = - - - - .-
Operating transfers in - 108,994 108,994 - 783,000 783,000 -
Operating transfers out . (3,098,764) (3,098,764 - (248,994) (248 994) o -
Total other financing sources (uses)  _ (2,989,770)  12,989,770) _ - 534,006 534 006 . ) - o
Excess of revenues and other sources N T [ . o
over (under) expenditures and other (uses) (1,129,155) (343,821) 785,334 ©605,846)  (108,634)° T 497212
Fund balance, beginning of year ) 3,337,956 *3‘,337 956 . = 1,396,545 1,396,545 -
Prior year encumbrances zppropriated . o nMT 92, 447 N 95,582 _ 95 542 N L
B et T B saanteT e
Fund balance, end of year : $ 2,301,248 3,086,582 . 886241 1, 333 453 ‘

“The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Revenues:
Property and other taxes
Municipal income taxes
Intergovernmentat
Charges for services -
Fines, costs and forfeitures

Licenses, permits and inspections

Special assessmenis
Interest
Contributions

- Other

Tota! revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Security of persons and property

Public health services
Leisure time activities
Community environment
" Transportation
General government
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirernent
Interest and fiscal charges

- Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from saile of bonds
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources
over (under} expenditures and other (uses)

Fund balance, beginning of year

Prior year encumnbrances appropriated

Fund balance, end of year

Debt,Se;n‘rice Fund ~ ) ‘ Cépital Projects Funds
© Variance ST Variance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable 7
Budget Actual _ (Unfavorable) Budget . Actual {Unfavorable)
.. ; 265000 . 268737, 3,137
1,270 576 (694) 6,723 724827 . 819
- 15 115 - 44,814 44,814
. . . 15,000 17,444 2,444
1,270 691 (579) 286723 338237 . SLSW
- - - - - e T L £ e =
- - - 5206158 4,039,439 1,166,719
1,000 1,000 - —— - -
250 203 . 47 - RN
1,250 1203 _ . 47 5206158 4039439 1166719
20 G2y (53 _(8919435)  (3701202) 1218233 ..
- - - 03915000 3922377 7322
- - - . 2444764 2,444,764 -
- - - 6,359,764 6,367,086 . -
20 512 (532) 1440320 | 2665884 1225355 .
2,654 2,654 1,659,812 1,659,812
- - 507,959 507,959 -
- = - - e " A |
2,674 2,142 3,608,100 4,833,655
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO = -
_COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES .
AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY . L
ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS - o - - -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 : o '

Total
: Internal (Memorandum
Enterprise  _ Service . .Only)
Operating revenues: | - o o L
Charges for services oot s =% - 7,829,839 0 .621,967 . . 8,451,806
Other 102,495 . . - 102495
Total operating revenues o _ S 7,932,334 0 621,967 E 8,554,301
Operating expenses: oo R :
Personnel services - - 1,640,652 : -~ 1,640,652
Contractual services , : CLo- 1,528,713 118,280 1,647,002
Supplics and materials , - - ~ 185,618 70955 . . 256,573
Other 224,319 -- 224319
Claims . : - ~ - 485,424 - 485,424
Depreciation 1,172,876 . 3,681 1,176,557
Total operating expenses = 4,752,178 678,349 5,430,527 7
Operating income T . - 3,180,156 . ,(56,3‘82.)7'7 3,123,774
Non-operating revenues (expenses): : _
Interest revenue . - . - 511,899 20,137 .- . 532,036
Interest expense and fiscal charges - B ©o.. (1,435,408) - (756) o (1,436,164) -
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) ' o (923,509) 19,381 ' (904,128) ‘
Net income before operating transfers -~ - - 2,256,647 ~  (37,001) 2,219,646
Operating transfers out ..o (13%,000)0 - __(139,000)
Net income o | : 2,117,647 (37,001) 2,080,646
Retained earnings at beginning of year LT 03334912 451,534 . 3,786,446
Retfained earnings at end of year T - 5,452,559 414,533 5,867,092
Contributed capital at beginning of year . 71960,092 . - 7,960,192
Special assessments : : : . .- 1,145 - - 11,145
Capital grant S 1,000,000 -~ 1,000,000 .
Contributed capital at end of year =~ _ ' 8971,337 . . - . 8971337 .
Total fund equity at end of year $ 14,423,896 414,533 .. 14,838,429

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO .

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROFRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers. '
Cash receipts from quasi-external opcratmg

transactions with other funds

Cash payments for employee services and benefits
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for employee medical claims -
Cash payments for landfill post-closure
Cash payments for other operating expenses
Cash received from other operating revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Capital coniributions received

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets

Advances in

Advances out

Transfers out

Principal paid on capital lease

Interest paid on capital lease

Principal paid on OWDA loans payable
Principal paid on mortgage revenue bonds
Principal paid on revenue bonds

Interest paid on OWDA loans payable
Interest paid on mortgage revenue bonds
Interest paid on revenue bonds

Proceeds from OWDA loans

Capital contributed by special assessments

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest -
Purchase of investments
Redemption of investrnents

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year.

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

4

Total
Internal  (Memorandum
Enterprise ~ Service. ,  Omly).
7,889,000 2,595 7,891,595 °
- 615211 615,211
(1,658,709) . 5 (1,658,709)
(1,819,666)  (69,869)  (1,889,535)
Ce - (584,636) (584,636)
(32898 - (328%9)
(215,138) - (215,138)
4295 - 4295
4166884 (36,699) 4,130,185
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
(1,370,540) - (1,370,540)
350,000 : - 350,000
~{200,000) - (200,000)
(139,000) - (139,000)
- (2,840) (2,840)
. (755) (755
(687,914) - (687,914)
| (480,000) - (480,000)
(1,350,0007 -7 (1,350,000)°
(649,344) - | (649,344)
-(716,136) - (716,136)
(61,271) . (61,271)
97,696 - 97,696
11,145 - 11,145
(5,195,364)  (3,595) . (s 198 959)
. 556,040 20,137 " 576,177
(2,443,715) (2,443,715)
2,355,112 - - 2,355,112
467,437 20,137 487,574
438957 (20,157 418,800
7,995,307 ~~ 469,223 8,464,530
8434264 449, 066 8,883,330
(Continued)



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS L AR o
ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS o ‘ T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999 .~ T T e e
{CONTINUED) , , e ' T
Total
Intermal  (Memorandum
Enterprise  Service | Only)
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: ) L
Operating income (loss) 3,180,156 (56,382 3,123,774
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash I : - '
provided (used) by operating activities: -~ .~ - -~ e e - - T ) . - T
Depreciation 1,172,876 : 3,6‘81 T 1,176,557
Changes in assets and liabilities: ’ . R ~- -
Accounts receivable ) ) - C (39, 039) (4 161) (43,2005
Prepaid items : ST aozesy T T L T (10,264)
Materials and supplies inventory o o - (40,821) (5,413} T (46,234)
Accounts payable ‘ o (24,502) , 6,499 T (18,003)
Contracts payable ] _ GL5ID - (31,511)
Claims payable 7 - 19,077 b 19,077
Accrued salaries payable . _ | B o 6737 - - - 6,737
Due to other governments o S CBs074Y T LT T Bs076)
Compensated absences payable ‘_ ' - 13,4137 - © 13,413
Pension obligation payable : ' 4,184 T ' 4,184
Landfill post-closure liability o - (29.2711) - (29271

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

5 % 4,166,884 (36.699) | 4,130,185

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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, CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO '
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999

T

The City of Oxford (the "City") is a home rule municipal corporation organized under the laws of

the State of Ohio that operates under its own charter. The City was organized as a municipality in
1830 and the charter was adopted in 1960. The municipal government provided by the charter is
kinown as a council-manager form of government. A seven-member council is elected and the

council selects one of its members to serve as mayor . The council appoints a c1ty manager an

auditor/finance dircctor, and a law director who execute the laws and admimister the government of
the City. The city manager appomts all other department managers of the Clty

REPORTING ENTITY

R - — —

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other
organizations that are included to ensure that the financial statements are fairly presented. The
City follows the guidelines of Govemmental Accounung Standards Board Statement No 14 “Thc
Financial Reporting Entity”. ‘

The primary government of the City consists of all funds and departments that comprise the legal
entity of the City. They provide various services including police and fire protection, parks and
recreation, planning, street mamtenance and repair, commumty development water sewer and
- refuse collection. . -

Component units are legally separate organizations for ‘which the City is financially accountable.
The City is financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints'a voling majority of the

organization's governing board and (1} the City is able to 51gmﬁcant1y influence the programs or '
services performed or prov1ded by the orgamzatlon, or (2) the City is legally entitled to or can
otherwise access the organization's resources; or (3) the City is legally obligated orﬁhas otherwise

assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the

‘organization; or (4) the City is obligated for the debt of the organization. ‘Component units may

also include organizations for which the Clty approves the budget, the issuance of debt, or the
levying of taxes. The City has no component units. N L

The City is associated with McCullough-Hyde Hospital, Inc. which is defined as a related
orgamzation (Note 21).

BASIS OF PRESENTATION -~ ACCOUNTING ™ |

The City uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the results of its.
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financml
management by segregating transactions related to certain City functlons or acuvmes '

17 -
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 1999

T e b L w- TEmT s

A fund is defined as 2 fiscal and accounting entlty with a self-balancing set of a,ccounts recording
cash and other financial resources, together with alt related liabilities and residual equities or
balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific
activities or attaming certain Ob_}eCtIVGS in accordance with special regulatlons restrictions or
limitations. An account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for
certain assets and Habilities not_recarded in the governmental fund types becanse they do not
directly affect net available expendable resources. ' N S

For financial statement presentation purposes, the various funds of the City are grouped into the
following fund types: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary..

.l o - P ~ e

Governmental Fund Types . =~

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
The acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related
current liabilities (except those accounted for in proprictary finds) are’ accounted for through
governmental funds. The following are the Clty s governmental fund types

General Fund - to account for all financial resources except those requlred to be accounted .
for in another fund. The General Fund balance i 18 avallable to the City for any purpose
provided it is expended or transferred acoordmg to the general laws of Ohio and the Charter
of the City. « - : :

S~ F

Special Revenue Funds — limited by local state and/or federal law for the financing of ‘_

certain governmental functlons {other than major capltal projects) that are 1ega11y restricted
to expenditure for specified purposes. . o

Debt Service Fupd - to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term and special assessment debt pnnmpal and mterest -

‘Capital Projects Funds - to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capltal facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Proprietary Fund Tvpes

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing activities that are similar to those
found in the private sector. The following are the City' spropnetary fund types:

18
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO '
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

. Fiduciary Fund Types

- - T — e e
I “", R B ] ot Er T ST T e

""" SR T

Enterprise Funds - to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner

similar to private business entelpnses where the intent is that the costs (expenses, including

depreciation) of providing services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed

or recovered primarily through user charges or where it has been dec1ded that a periodic

determination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropnate for~
~ capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountablhty, or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - to account for the financing of services provided by one

department or agency to other departments or agencles of' the Clty on a cost-relmbursement _

basis. - B ‘ T

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets the City holds in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, prlvate organizations, other governmental units, and other funds. The only Aduciary
funds of the City are dgency funds. Agency funds are purely custod1a1 (assets equal l1ab111tles) and
thus do not involve measurement of results of operatlons o

(- T, e o

Account Groups ' T - N

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to proprietary funds and those of general

government funds, and between long-term liabilities related to propnetary funds and those of‘ '

general government funds, the following account groups a:e used

General Fixed Assets Account Group - to establish accountmg control and accountab111ty
for all general fixed assets of the City not related to the propnetary ﬁmds '

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group — to account for all unmatured general
fong-term indebtedness of the City that is not a hablhty of the proprletary ﬁ.mds mciudmg '
special assessment debt for which the Clty is obhgated in sorne manner.

The accompanying financial statements of the City of Oxford are prepateéd in conformity with
generally accepted accounting pnncxples (GAAP) for local governmental units. The Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-settlng body for estabﬁshmg '
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.. The City also applies Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November
30, 1989, to its proprietary activitiés provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of ihese ﬁnanclal
statements are summarized below.
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NG POLICIES (Continued)

[ S

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING =~ = .
The accounting and financial reporting tréatment applied to a fund is determined by its
‘measurement focus. All govemmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and other ﬁnancmg sources) and decreases (1 ., expendltures and
other financing uses) in nét curtent assets. 77 - . ¢ - _ -

Al] proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of économic resources measurement focus, With
this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) 1s segregated into contributed
capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund operating statements present increases
(i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total assets. _

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the ﬁnancxal statements. Ba515 of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made. -

- All governmental fund types and agency funds are accounted for using the modified accryal basis -
of accounting. Under this basis, revenues are recogmzed in the accountmg penod when they '
become both measurable and available. "Measurable” means the amount of the transactlon can be
determined and "available” means collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current ﬁscal year. The available period for the City is
thirty-one days after year-end. =
In applying the susceptible to the accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following
revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available: interest earnings, state-levied locally
shared taxes (including gasoline tax), fines and forfeitures, grants, and municipal income tax.

The City reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a
potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria recognition in the
current period. In the subsequent period, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, the
liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is
recognized. Current and delinquent property taxes measurable as of December 31, 1999, whose
availability is indeterminable and which are not intended to finance current period obligations,
have been recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue. Levied special assessments are
measurable, and have been recorded as a receivable. Since all assessments are due outside the
available period, the entire amount has been deferred.
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 _

N L

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING P

LICIES (Continied)

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. . Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting
period in which the related fund liability is in‘curr"ed if measurable. Principal and interest on

accumulated i n the debt servxce fund for payments to bo made ea;rly in the followmg year The T .

costs. of accumulated unpaid vacation, compensatory time and sick leave are reported as fund
liabilities in the period in which they will be liquidated with available financial resources rather
than in the period employees eamn them. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the govemmental funds.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized for reporting pufposestby the 'proprietary'ﬁmd types..
Revenues are recognized when they arc earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred. - '

BUDGETARY PROCESS .. . . . e o

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Chio Revised Code and entails the
_preparation of budgetary documents within an_established timetable. The major documents

~ - T = L e

prepared are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the appropriation ordinance, =~

all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of estlmated
resources and the appropriations ordinance are subject to amendment throughout the year with the
legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as certified. All funds,
other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. )
The legal level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which transfers of budget amounts cannot
be made without legislative approval) is established at the _department Jevel. Budget fransfers over
$10,000 made between departments within a function require council approval. Transfers of any
amount from one function to another, or increases in budget, require legal approval. For budgetary
presentation, all funds only have one department except for the General Fund and Recreation Fund.

Tax Budget e

e L et

A tax budget of estimated revenues and expenditures for all funds is submitted to the County
Auditor, as Secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each year, for the period
January 1 to December 31 of the following year. '
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STA’I‘EMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 1999 '

s . SR T g e T e TR

NOTE 2 - &UMMARY )3} SIGNIFICANT AC_COUNTjNG POLICIES (Contmued)

Estimated Resources

AL - ) S L - MY e mle a o ot . -z N

R T VT

The County Budget Commission determines if the budget substantiates a need to levy all of )
previously authorized taxes and reviews estimated revenue. The Commission certifies its actions
to the City by September 1. As part of this certification, the City recelves the official certificate of
estimated resources that states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to December 31, the City
must revise its budget so that total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing
year will not exceed the amount available as stated i the certlficate of estimated resources. The
revised budget then serves as the basis for the appropnatmn ordinance. -On or before January 31,
the certificate of estimated resources is amended to include any unencumbered fund balances at
December 31 of the preceding year. The certlﬁcate may be further amended during the year if the
fiscal officer determines that the revenue co]lected is greater or less than the current estimates. The
amounts reported in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the ﬁnal amended ofﬁmal
certificate of estimated resources 1ssued for 1999,

Appropnations = o ' -

et o N A I

The annual appropriation ordinance must be passed no later than April 1 of each year for the period
January 1 to December 31. A temporary appropriation measure to control expenditures may be
passed on or about January 1 of each year for the period from January 1 to March 31. The
appropriation ordinance fixes spendmg authonty at the fund and department level. The
appropriation ordinance may be amended during the year, as new information becomes available,

provided that total fund appropriations do not exceed current estimated resources, as certified. The
allocation of appropriations among departments and functions within a fund may be modified with
approval of both the city manager and finance director for those up to $10,000 made between
departments which are within a function. All other modifications may only be made by resolution of
City Council. During the year a nurnber of supplernental appropriation measures wére passed. The
budget amounts that appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons represent the ﬁnal
appropriation amounts, including all amendments and modlﬁcatlons

- Encumbrances -

s < - te#

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, conﬁacts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the hon-GAAP budgetary
basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation and to determine and maintain
legal compliance. The Ohio Revised Code prohibits expenditurés plus encumbrances from
-exceeding appropriations. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported
as a reservations of fund balances for subsequent-year expenditures for govermnental funds and
reported in the notes to the financial statements for proprietary funds.



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO = | o
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

S

NOTE 2 — SUIVIM@Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contmued)

Lapsing of Appropriations e f‘ :

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropnatlon lapses and is restored to o
the respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future appropriation.
The encumbered appropriation balance is carried forward to the succeedmg year and is not
reappropriated.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ...~~~ ,

3 N O 2L T T N S T T

Cash balances of the City’s funds, ékcept restricted cash held by a trustee or fiscal agent, are
pooled and invested in shori-term investrments in ‘order to provide improved cash management
Each fund's interest in the pool is reported as "Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents" on the
balance sheet. N

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 31 “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools” , requires that investments be
recorded at their fair value and that changes in the fair value be reported in the operatmg statement '

(Note 6).

Interest earmed by the City is dlstnbuted to the funds accordmg to Clty Ordmance Interest eamed
during 1999 amounted to approxnnately $919,000."

-For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows and for presentationt on the combined
balance sheet, funds inciuded within the City’s cash management pool and investments with
original maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

PREPAID ITEMS o

Payments made to vendors for services. that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 1999 are
recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording a current asset for the
prepaid amount and reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed.

- Prepaids for governmental funds were immaterial as of December 31, 1999.

INVENTORY OF SUPPLIES =~ . =~

- e R e

Inventories of governmerital funds are stated at cost while inventories of proprietary funds are
stated at the lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis.
The costs of inventory items are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds when
purchased and as expenses in the proprietary funds when used. Reported supplies inventory is
‘equally offset by a fund balance reserve in the governmental funds which indicates that it does not
constitute available expendable resources even though it is a component of net current assets. 7



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

RESTRICTED ASSETS =
Restricted assets in the enterprise funds represent cash and cash equivalents and investments which
have been set aside to satisfy Ohio Environmental Protection Agency guidelines related to landfill
closure and post-closure costs, and bond indenture requirements for current and future debt
payments and the replacement and improvement of fixed assets ongmally acquired ‘with revenue
bond proceeds.

INT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

= o L A L P

Long-term interfund loans are classified as “advances to/from” on the balance sheet. Short-term
interfund loans are classified as “interfund receivables/payables”. - '

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

General fixed assets (fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations) are not capitalized in
the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction costs are
reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the general
fixed assets account group. Fised assets utilized in the proprietary funds are capltahzed in the
fund.

All fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical
cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at the1r estimated fair
market value on the date received. Assets valued at less. than $2,500 are not capltahzed

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to thg value of the agset or materially
extend asset [ives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and improvements to fund
fixed assets are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets. = ..

Public domain (“infrastructure”) general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, and drainage systems are not capltalmcd as these assets are 1mmovable and of value :
only to the government. B
The City has elected not to record depreciation on assets in the general fixed assets account group.

Depreciation for proprietary fund fixed assets is determined by allocating the cost of the fixed

assets over the estimated useful hves of the assets on the stralght-hne basis. The estlmated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings _ 20 years

Equipment 5-15 years

Improvements _ 20-50 years

Sewer lines/water lines  50)years -

24
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIU
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 B

NQTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

_COMPENSATED ABSENCES

P

The City follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16, “Accounting for Compensated
Absences”. Vacation and compensatory time benefits are accrued as 4 liability as the benefits are
camed if the employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already

rendered and it is probable that the City will compensate the employees for the benefits through

paid time off or some other means. Sick leave termination benefits are accrued using the vesting
method. The liability includes the employees who are currently eligible to receive terminatior
benefits and those employees for whom it is probable that they will become eligible to receive
payment in the future. The amount is based on accumulated sick leave and employees' wage rates
at year-end. -
For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount
expected to be paid using current expendable available resources. ‘These amounts are recorded in
the account "compensated absences payable” in the fund from which the employees who have
accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The remainder is reported in the general long-term obligations
account group. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compénsated absences is reported asa .
fund liability. : ) -

- T B

- ACCR LONG-TERM LIABILITIES = =

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities are reported as obligations of the
funds regardless of whether they will be liquidated with current resources. However, claims and

judgements, compensated absences, spcc:lal termination benefits and contractually required pension '

contributions are reported as a liability in the general long-term obligations account group to the
extent that they will not be paid with current expendable financial resources. Paymeénts made more
than thirty-one days after year-end are generally considered not to have been paid with current -
available resources. Bonds and capital leases are recognized as a hablllty of the general long-term
obligations account group until due.

appmpnate propnetazy funds. Long-tenm hab1ht1 €s arc bemg repald from the followm g funds:.

Obligation == . Fund

Special assessment bonds , Debt Servace Fund 3
Compensated absences/ - Will be paid from the fund(s) from
pension obligation ~ which the employee’s salary is paid.
Mortgage revenue bonds . Water Entefprjse* Fund

OWDA Lbans | , ; Sewer ahd Refuse Ept_erp’ﬁ’se Funds
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AQCOUNTING mucxss (Contmued) o

B AT R

Obligation =~ - Fund

Landfill post-closure . Refuse Enterprise Fund
care bonds - .

Capital leases Paid from the fund(s) which

is utilizing the asset acquired

CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST S
T = e E s - A T e

Tl Ll T

The City’s policy is to capitalize net interest on proprietary fund construction projects until
substantial completion of the project. The amount of capitalized interest equals the difference
between the interest cost associated with the tax exempt borrowing used to finance the project and
the interest earned from temporary investment of the debt proceeds. Capitalized interest is
amortized on the straight-line basis over the estlmated useful hfe of the asset

CONTRIB D CAPTT

- S s AT
L - ] St PR
M e AT R AT R ey

T
.

Contributed capital represents resources from other funds, federal and state grants, other
- governments, assets whose construction was financed by special assessments and prwate sources"

provided to the City’s proprietary funds which are not Sub_)ect to repayment ’ :
Only those amounts that have been specifically identified have been classified as contnbuted
capital in the accompanying financial statements. All other fund equlty amounts pertammg to the
propnetary funds are classified as retained earmngs -

RESERVATION OF FUND EQUITY

STATTSE R e gt o

Reservations of fund balances are established to identify the existence of assets that, because of
their non-monetary nature or lack of liquidity, represent financial resources not available for
current appropriation or expendlture, or the portion of fund balance that is legally segregated for
specific future ise. Fund balances have been reserved for encumbrances, loans receivable,
advances, and inventories of materials and supphes Reta.med earmngs has been reserved for
replacement and improvement. : - -

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

A o - T

E I

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanylng notes Actual results may differ from
those estimates. -
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES . .

In governmental funds, grants awarded on a non-reimbursement basis, shared revenues, and
_entitlements are recorded as mtergovemmental receivables and revenues when measurable and
available. Reimbursement grants are tecorded as recelvables and revenues when the related
expenditures are incurred. -

Grants received for proprietary fund operations are tecogniZed as revenues when eamed and
measurable. Resources restricted for the construction of capital assets are recorded as contributed
capital.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS =~

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues and expenditures or expenses. .
Transactions’ that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from 1t that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other mterfund transactions are reported as transfers. Nonrecumng or nonroutme perrnanent '
transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. - ’

TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED FINANCIATL STATEME

PR——

P

Total columns on the combined financial statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to
indicate that they are presented only to _facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not
present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally
. accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interﬁmd
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

- NOTE 3 ~ PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment is necessary in 1999 to adjust housing grant loans receivable which
were recorded in 1998 but did not meet the available criteria. The City will only collect these
loans in the event a recipient sells the home purchased using the grant, Thus, the likelihood of
future collection of these loans, which are forgiven overa five-year period, is deemed remote.

Special
Revenue

Fund Balance at December 31, 1998 . S I 1;592,989 .
Adjustment for housing grant loans . (303,623
Fund balance restated at December 31, 1998 , .. 8 1289366 .
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NOTE 4 - BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

R L MY o L

Budgetary Basis of Accounfing

PR PN Lo

While reporting financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance/retained
earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting prmmples (GAAP), the budgetary basis as
provided by law requires accounting for certain ‘transactions ‘according to cash receipts,
disbursements, appropriations, and encumbrances. The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditires and Changes in Fund Balances, Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budget Ba515), All
Govermmental Fund Types, is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meanmgful
comparison of actual results with the budget. The major dlfferences between the budget ba&us
and GAAP basis are as follows: .

1. Revennes are recorded when received in cash (budget ba.sm) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed 10 when the
liability is incurred (GAAP basis).

3. Outstanding year-end encumbrances are treated as expendltures (budget bas1s) rather
than as a reservation of fund balance -

4. Proceeds from and principal payments on debt obligations are reported on the
- operating statement (budget basis) rather than a balance sheet transactlon (GAAP
basis). .

The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the year ended December 31,
1999, on the GAAP basis to the budget basis are as follows:

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Governmental Fund Types
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue  Service Projects
: , ) , . Fund  Funds . Fund Funds o
GAAP Basis s 149314 56794 (512) 5252992

- Adjustments: ‘ . ' : - o
Revenue accruals: S (146,144) 27307 - 23_0,517
Expenditure accruals , (39,437)  (42,586) - (79,139)
Encumbrances . - {266,548) (41 155y - (2, 745 ,308)
Other sources _ _ _ IV - _— 7322
Transfers {41,006) { 108 ,994) _' i - -
Budget Basis : o § 0 _(343.821)  (108,634) jle) 2 665 884

e T T—— = T m =
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NOTE 5= FICIT = . .. .. . .0 .. o L

L oA e ot - - B A e mt - T em

At December 31, 1999, the Refuse Enterprise Fund had deficit retained earnings of $3,400,959. ..
The Refuse Fund deficit reflects the expense to operations in previous years o properly account
for the landfill closure and post-closure liability in accordance with GASB 18. Thls fund deﬁc:lt o

will be eliminated over time by a solid waste removal rate increase._

NOTE 6 - DEPQSITS AND INVESTMENTS . ... . .. ... .. .. .. . . . ...

State statutes classify monies held by the City into three categories. .

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury. Such
montes must be maintained either as cash in the City treasury, in commercial accounts péyéblé or
withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in
money market deposit accounts. .

Inactive deposits are public deposits that Council has identified as not required for use within the

current two year period of designation of depositories.  Inactive deposits must either be

evidenced by certificates of deposit rnatunng not later than the end of the current. penod of
designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Intérim monies are those monies which are not
needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of
designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit
maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit or by savings or deposit accounts.
Protection of the City's deposits is’ pr0V1ded by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatlon by
eligible - securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety
company bonds deposited with the finance director by the financial institution or by a single
collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public
monies deposited with the mstltutlon The Clty may deposit or 1nvest interim momes in the

following securities: : ‘

1. United States Treasury potes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by
the United States Treasury or any other obhgatlon guaranteed as to prmcxpal or mterest
by the United States; - - , . -

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by the federal
government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the Federal National
Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government Nafional Mortgage Association, and
Student Loan Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct
issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities; :

3. Written repurchase agreements for a period not to exceed thirty days in secunt:es llsted
above that mature within five years from the date of purchase;
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Contmued) o

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

5. Interim deposits such as certificates of deposit with cligible ﬁnancial institutions;

No-load money market mutual funds consmtmg excluswely of obhgatlons descnbed in_

division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obhgatlons

provided that investments in securities described in this d1v1510n are made only through

eligible institutions; ~

7. The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio). )

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and
derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of debt for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage
and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date
of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debt of the City, and must be purchased
with the expectation that it will be held to maturity. Investments may only be made through
eligible dealers and institutions as approved by City Council. Payment for investments may be
made only upon delivery of the securities représenting the investments to the finance director or,

if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of conﬁrmatlon of transfer ﬁ'om

the custodian.

Deposits

At year-end, the canymg amount of the C}tys deposuts was $(642,999) and the bank balance was
$300,629. Of the bank balance, $115,819 was covered by federal deposnoxy insurance. The
remaining amounts are considered umnsured and uncollatenahzed -

Investments L o 7 :
GASB Statement No. 3, "Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements" requires that the City's investments be classified in categories of risk.

Category 1 includes investments that are msured or registered or for which the securities are held

by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unreglstered
investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust depanment or
agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which
the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s
name. The Firstar Treasury Fund is uncla551ﬁed smce it is not ewdenced by securities that exist
in physical or book entry form.’ ;

: _ -Catggog{? ~ . Lost =~ Fair Value

U.S. Treasury Notes %8 1316952 1322 656 1,316,952
Federal National Mortgage e T
Association Note - - 1,727,531 '1,748,315 - 1,727,531
Firstar Treasury Fund - __-21.885866 _ 21.885.866

'3 3.044483 24,956,837 ' _24.930.349
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) |

The classification of cash and cash equivalents and ipvestments on the combined financial
statements is based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No..9. A reconciliation between the
classifications of cash and investments on the combined financial statements and the
classiﬁcation per GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows: :

Cash and Cash
Equivalents _Investments

GASB Statement9 =~ s 21,242,867 3,044,483

Investments: - . o . T S

Firstar Treasury Fund =~ 21.885.866) . _21.885866 "~ . .

GASB Statement3 =~ CT8 L (642999) 24930349 .
- NQTE 7 -PROPERTY TAXES ==~ ” o .

Taxes collected on real property (other than public utilities) in one calendar year are levied in the
preceding calendar year on assessed values as of January 1 of that preceding year, the lien date.
Assessed values are established by the County Auditor at 35 percent of appraised market value.

All property is required fo be revalued every six years. The most recent revaluanon was - -

completed during 1996 and the new values resulting from the county-wide reappraisal were not
effective until January 1, 1997. Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. The
first payment is due December 31, with the remainder payable by June 20 unless extended.

Taxes collected from tangible personal property (other than public utilities) in one calendar year
are levied in the prior calendar year on the assessed values during and at the close of the
taxpayers’ most recent fiscal year that ended on or before March 31 of that calendar year, and at
the tax rates determined in the preceding year. Tangible personal property used in business ~ ..
(except for public utilities) is currently assessed for ad valorem taxation purposes. at 25 perccnt _
of ifs true value. }

Amounts paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20.- Single county taxpayers may
pay annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due April 30; if paid seml annually,
the first payrnent is due April 30, with the remamder payable by September 20

Public utility real and tangible personal property taxes collected in one calendar year are levied
in the preceding calendar year on assessed values determined as of December 31 of the year
preceding the tax collection year, the lien date. Certain pubhc utlhty tangible personal property
currently is assessed at 88 percent of its trye value. Public ut111ty property taxes are payable on
the same dates as real property taxes described previously.
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NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES (Continued)

The County Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in the County,
including the City of Oxford. The County Audltor penod;cally remits to the City its portion of
the taxes collected. The full tax rate for all Clty operatlons for the year énded December 31,

1999, was $3.65 per $1,000 of assessed value. The assessed values of real and tangible personal B
property upon which 1999 property tax receipts were based are as foHows "

Real Property Assessed Valuation _ % 172,268,090
Public Utility Real Property Assessed Valuation 8,882,460
Tangible Personal Property Assessed Valuation = 11,324795
Total 5 192475345

Property taxes receivable represent real and tangible personal property taxes, public utﬂlty taxes
and outstanding delinquencies that are measurable as of December 31, 1999.. Although total
property tax collections for the next year are measurable amounts to be recelved durmg the
available period are not subject to reasonable estimation at December 31, nor are they intended
to finance 1999 operations. The receivable is therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue.

NOTE8-INCOMETAX . o

aoE e e s LY

The City levies 2 municipal income tax of 1.75 percent on substantially all income earned within
the City. In addition, the residents of the City are required to pay income tax on income eammed
outside of the City; however, the City allows a credit for mcome taxes pald to another
municipality up to 100 percent of the City’s current tax rate.

Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employee conipensation and
remit the tax to the City quartérly. Corporations and other 1nd1v1dual taxpayers are required to
pay their estimated tax quarterly and file a declaration annually.

Income tax proceeds are to be used to pay the cost of administering the tax, general fund
operations, capital improvements, debt service and other governmental functions when needed
as determined by Council. In 1999, the proceeds were receipted to the General Fund

NOTE 9 - RECEIVABLES

S i T b

Receivables at December 31, 1999 consisted of taxes, intergovernmental receivables: -arising from
grants, entitlement and shared revenues, spemaI assessments, loans, interest on mvestments
interfund activity, fines and forfeitures, and utility accounts. "All recewables are c0n51dered fully
collectible.
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NOTE 9 = RECEIVABLES (Cénijnted)

~ A summary of intergovernmental receivables follows: ) i
. _GENERAL FUND e e el
Local Government =~~~ - _§ 47,604
Local Government Revenue Assistance 8,119
COPSgrant T oo T 12,800 0
Total General Fund 08.523. . ' -
SPECIAL REVENUEFUNDS . . ...
Sl . . e e e e e e
Motor Vehicle License Fee§ ~ ~ R X0 7
Gasoline Tax. , L L 11,514
Local LicenseFees™ "~ -~~~ . = - " 3682
Total Street - - 18223 . T . .
State Highway Improvement o
Motor Vehicle License Fees ) 245
Gasoline Tax : T 934 -
Total State Highway Improvement 1179
. _Community Development Block Grant =~~~ = ) N
Community Development Block Grant N 14.649
Total Special Revenue Funds _ 34051 .
Total ail funds P 5 102974 . .
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NOTE 10 - FIXED ASSETS

e 3T T, R

B e T U N S - . - :
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- Changes in general fixed assets during the year ended December 31, 1999 were as follows:

----- SR gy PRy e LRI

Balance at Balance at

Asset Category 1/1/99 , Addztlogs o Deletlons 12{31/99 o

Land s ie17486 \ T2000° 1615, s
Buildings 2300554 _ 34299 - 2334853
Improvements ﬁ 315,470 107,742 S 43212

- Equipment _ 2,673,788 - lli,{iS? 7 48 413 o 2,741,832

Total | $6907258 258498 - 50 43 %,'iffs,szxé' o

A summary of the proprietary funds’ property, plant and equipment at December, 31 1999
follows: :

Internal

Land % 368,606 : -

Building oo 8201707 S -
Improvements : o 2;8,849,219 - ' T
Equipmient - 3644208 20292 - .
Total 42,063,800 . 29,202

Less: accumulated depreciation (13.720,228) __ (16,487)

Net fixed assets , .8 28343572 12805 - T

NOTE 1} - DEFINED BENFEFIT PENSION PLANS

Public Employees Retirement System

L

The City contributes to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS),.a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, anrmal cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
The authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 145 of the
Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a stand-alone financial report which may be obtained by
writing to the Public Employees Ret1rement System 277 East Town Street, Columbus Ohio
43215-4642. S
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NOTE 11 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Plan members, other than law enforcemeént employees, are required to contribute 8.5% of their
annual covered salary while law enforcement employees are required to contribute 9%. The City
is required to contribute 13.55% of coveted payroll for employees and 16.70% for employees”™

T B T

T e I Y o CO

engaged in law enforcement. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee o

and employer contributions. The City's required coniributions to’ PERS for the. years ended
Dceember 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were $434,583, $411,788, and $387,840, respectively. The
full amount has been contributed for 1998 and 1997, Approximately 75% has been contributed

for 1999 with the remainder being reported as liabilities within the general long-term obligations

account group and the Enterprise Funds.

— S N Tom L E L I .z

Qhio Police and Fire Pension Fund,_ o o .

The City contributes to the Olio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. OP&F provides rétirement and disability benefits,

annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

Benefits are established by the Ohio State Leglslature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the
Ohio Revised Code. QP&F issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
information and required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtamed
by writing to OP&F, 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164. = . . '

Plan members are required to contributé 10% of their annual covered salary and the City is
required to contribute 19.5% and 24% respectively for police officers and firefighters. The Ohio
Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions.” The City's
required contributions to the Fund for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were
$235,115, $231,079, and $207,480, respectively. The full amount has been contributed for 1998
and 1997. Approximately 75% has been contributed for 1999 with the remainder bemg reported
as a liability within the general long-term obligations account group. = o

NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENFFITS . .

Public Employees Retirement System -

e Mt e ) - ~

The Public Employees Retirement System of Ohto (PERS) ‘provides postretirement health care
coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of quahfylng Ohio service credit and
10 primary survivor recipients of such retirees. Health care coverage for dlsabxhty recipients is

available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12.. A portion of each
employer’s contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health care based
on authority granted by State statute. The 1999 employer contribution rate was 13.55% of

covered payroll for employees not engaged in law enforcement; 4 2% was the portion that was

used to fund health care for 1999. The non-officer law enforcement employer T rate for 1999 was
16.70% and 4.2% was used to fund health care.
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NQTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) o
OPEB are financed through employer contnbutions and investment earmngs The contributions
allocated to retiree health and Medicare, along with mvestment income on allocated assets and
periodic adjustments in health care provisions, are expected to be sufficient to Sustain the
program indefinitely. During 1999, OPEB expenditures made by PERS were $523,599,349. As
of December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments
were $9,870,285,641. At December 31, 1999, the total number of benefit rec1plents eligible for
OPEB through PERS was 118 062 The C1ty s actual contnbutlons for 1999 used to fund OPEB N
were $134,705. T , _ e T CoT e

Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

T . A T P B

The Ohio and Police Fire Pension Fund (OP&F) provides post-retirement health care coverage to
any person who received or is eligible to receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or
eligible dependent child of such person: An ehglble dependent child is any child under the age
of 18 whether or not the child is attending school or under the age of 22 if attendmg school full-
time or on a 2/3 basis. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is consulered
an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. The Ohio
Revised Code provides that that health care costs paid from the funds of OP&F shall be included
in the employer’s contribution rate. Health care funding and accounting is on 'a pay-assyou-go
basis. The tota] police employer contribution rate is 19.5% of covered payroll and the total
firefighter employer contribution rate is 24% of covered payroll of which 7% of covered payroll
was applied to the postemployment health care program in 1999. '

In addition, since July 1, 1992, most Tetirees have been required to contribute a portion of the
cost of their health care coverage through a deduction from their monthly benefit payment. The
number of participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of December 31, 1998, (the
latest information available) was 11,424 for police and 9,186 for firefighters. The Fund’s total
health care expenses for the year ended December 31, 1998 were $78,596, 790. The Cxty s actual

contributions for 1999 that were used to fund OPEB were $84 406. o

NOTE 13 — OTHER EMPL.OYEE BENEFITS
Deferred Compensation Plans

City employees and elected officials have the option to participate in two independently-
managed deferred compensation plans, both created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. Participation is on a voluntary payroll deduction basis., According to the plahs, the
deferred compensation is not available until termination, retirement, death or an unforeseen
emergency. |
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- NOTE 13 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Confinued)

T TRT RO L e, TRTO el

Compensated Absences

Accumulatea’ Unpaid Vacation and Compensarory Time

City employees earn vacation leave at varying rates based upon length of servige. They may
earn compensatory time al one and one-half times their regular rate of pay in Tieu of overtime pay
for all hours worked in excess of the 40 hour workweek. In the case of death or separatton from
employment, an employee (or their estate) is paid for any unused vacation or compensatory
leave. The obligation for accrued unpaid vacatton and compensatory t1me for the Clty as a
whole amounted to $259,821 at December 31, 1999. '

City employees earn sick leave at the rate of 10 hours a month Sick leave is cumulative without
limit. In the event of death or separation, a non-police employee (or their estate) is paid one-
third of their accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 1,200 hours. . Police officers
grandfathered per the contract beginning January 1, 1992 may convert their first 600 hours at
one-half and an additional 600 hours at a ong-to-one ratio. During the’ month of April, all other
employees have the option to convert a maximum of 1,200 hours of sick leave to cash at a five- -
to--one ratio. This payout option requires an employee t6 retain a 240 hour sick leave balance. -
The obligation for accruéd unpaxd s:ck leave for the Clty as 2 whole amounted to $248 473 at.
December 31, 1999. o S o e SR

NOTE 14-RISK MANAGEMENT =, . . . .

N ST Tw D Tl T )

The City maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for real property,
building contents, vehicles and general liability insurance, property and general liability for the
closed municipal landfill, and police professional liability insurance. Vehicle policies inciude
liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage. Claim payments have not exceeded

coverage in the past three years. There was no dechne in the level of coverage ﬁ'om the prior

yeat.

The City has established a medical self—msurance fund. The purpose of this fund is to pay
medical claims of employees and their covered dependents and minimize the total cost of annual
medical insurance to the City. Medical claims exceeding $20,000 per individual or $351 232 in

the aggregate in a given year are covered through a prwate msurance camer ﬁ

The claims liability of $46,822 reported in the fund at December 31, 1999 18 based on the
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10 which requires
that a liability for unpaid claims costs be reported if information prior to the issmance of the
financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of
the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The estimate
was not affected by incremental claim adjustment expenses and does not include other allocated

. or unallocated claim adjustment expenses Changes in the fund’s clalms hablhty amount for the ]

past two years were:
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NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Balance at 7
Beginning Current. +Claims  Balance at 7
- .ofYear = Claims ~ Payments EndofYear ,'
1998 - § 31,602 439,876 443,673 27,805 .
1999 $ 27805 485424 466,347

NOTE 15 - CAPITALIZED LEASE

O -

The City leased a copier under a capital lease.

the net present value of the minimum lease payments as of December 31, 1999,

Year Ending
December 31 ‘ _ )
2000 0 783595
2001 ' ‘ 3,595 .
2002 1,498 e
Minimum lease payments - 8,698 o
Less: . Amount representing interest 821 .
Present value of minirnum lease payments” = §  _7.877

NOTE 16 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS . -

. N e Lt A

Changes in long-term obligations during 1999 were as follows:

46,8827 .

PEE NN

The leased asset and related obligation are
accounted for in the internal service fund. The asset under capital lease was recorded at 514, 775
which represented the present value of the future minimum lease payments at acquisition. The
following is a schedule of future minimum leasé payments under the capital lease together W1th

Interest Balance at Balanceat

General Long-Term Obligations .~ "Rate =~ 12/31/98  Increases Decreases £2f31!99 )

Special Assessment Bonds: o . U
1979 Sidewalk, Curb & Gutter “6.75% % 3,060 . -, 1,000 . 2,000
General Obligation Bonds: o, . _ o
1999 Park Improvement Bonds 39%555%.. - 3915000 -~ 3,915,000
Pension obligations | Do 126364 . 128078 126364 128,078

Compensated absences payabie ' é63;774 l 339389 263,774 ‘ _

Total General Long-Term Obligations ’ $ 393,138 4382467
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

. NOTE 16 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) .

City Council authorized the issuance of Park Improvement Bonds dated October 1, 1999 in the
amount of $3,915,000 for the purpose of design and construction of municipal parks. The bonds
have a final maturity date of December 1, 2019 and are backed by the full faith and credit of the
City. These bonds will be repaid from the Debt Service Fund. '

The special assessment bond issues are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In the
event that an assessed. property owner fails to make payments, the City will be required to pay
the related debt. All monies available in the Debt Service Fund are for special assessment debt.
Funds cannot be transferred until the debt is paid in full. Compensated absences and the pensmn
obligation will be paid from the fund from which the person is paid.

Interest Balance at . Balance at
Proprietary Fund Obligations ~ ° ~ _ Rate -~ 12/31/98  Increases Decreases  12/31/99
Enterprise Fund: '
Mortgage Revenue Bonds A T . L U T
1992 Water Supply System . 325%-06% § 12,120,000 ' - 480,000 11,640,000
OWDA Loans Payable: e e Sl
1987 Sewer Plant ;- 7.73% 2, 657 405 - . 185300 2,471,605
1995 Landfill Closure o 435% 3391017~ - 192,095 . 3,199,822
1997 Collection System o - T4.12% ’ 647,404 - . 23918 623,386
1997 Sewer Plant” =~ =~ ) T 4.12% .-6,371,972 - 97696 275458 6,194,210 :
1998 Collection System caL L 398% _309250 . . - 10643 298,607 =

13377948  97.696 * 687,914 12,%87,730

1995 Landfill Posi-closure Bond 6.33% T 1,350,000 © < 1,350,000 e
Landfill Post-Closure Care Payable ] . 1,265,492 . . . - 29271 1,236,221
Compensated absences payable o . 127,853 141,266 127,853 . .141,266
Pension obligation ) . ] - 43,091 47275 43,091 47275
Total Enterprise Fund Obligations o o _28.284384 286,237 2,718,129 25,852.492

Internal Service Fund:

. Capital lease payable - ) 10716 - 2839 7877

Total Proprietary Fund Obligations ’ T8 28295100 2§§,23 2,720,968 25,860.369
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO .
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 1999 ~

T — _‘,‘_‘_;t',

NOTE 16 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

R S S TR

The mortgage revenue bonds payable are paid from operating revenues of the Water Fund. The
1987 Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) loans payable represent amounts borrowed
from the OWDA for the construction of sewer system improvements and are paid from Sewer

Fund revenue. The 1995 OWDA loans payable represent amounts borrowed from the OWDA for ~

closure costs for the landfill are paid from Refuse Fund revenue. The Landfill Improvement

Bonds represent amounts for post-closure costs of monitoring the landfiil for thirty years as

required by Ohio Administrative Code. The proceeds were placed in a restricted trust account in
order to fulfill the financial assurance requirements. The bonds are paid from Refuse Fund
revenue (Note 25). The 1997 and 1998 OWDA loans payable represent amounts borrowed from
the OWDA for wastewater collection systems improvements and for an equahzatmn basm and
influent pump station in the City, and the loans will be paid from Sewer Fund revenue.

The mortgage revenue bonds are callable at the optlon of the Clty at the followmg redemptlon'

premiums on the dates indicated: B
Premium - % of

RedemptionDates =~~~ L Pﬁ Valu_r - . ,
December 1, 2002 and June 1,2003 . . , Co . 102% .

December 1, 2003 and June 1, 2004 . . 101%

December 1, 2004 and thereafter T 100%

As of December 31, 1999, the City’s overall legal debt margin (the ability to issue additional
amounts of general obligation bonded debt) was $16,294,911. Principal and mterest
requirements to retire the City’s outstandmg obhgatmns at December 31, 1999 were:

Special Mortgage - Pak
Assessment  Revenue OWDA [mprovément
Bonds Bonds ,  Loans . Bopds . Total
2000 $ 2,135 1,196,135, 1,223,357 328272 - 2,749 899
2001 - 1,199,890 1,223,357 324 972 2,748,219
2002 - 1,196,000 1223357 324,739 2,744,096
2003 .- TL197,400 1,223,357 _'_329 099 2,749,856 .
2004 - .- 1,196,700 1,223,357 . 327811 2 747,868
2005-2009 - 5988200 5,725,562 . 1,634,635 13,348,397
2010-2014 S 5,988,800 4,160,692_ 828,334 10 977,826

!

2015:2019 2250000 2893540 _ S145749

Total  § 2135 _

18255248 6991402 43211910
Sl e T
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =~ °~
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ABILITIES |

Advances To/From —~ = 7

Receivables . Pavables - o
General Fund ' $ . 300000 - T L
Special Revenue Fund
Community Development Block Grant - - 150,000
Enterprise Funds R :
Water Fund . 400,000 _ -
Sewer Fund . ' - 400,000 = . .
Refuse Fund ' ' - 150,000 .
Total = 3 700,000 ~ 700,000

B e T

On September 8, 1992, the City issued $14,965,000.1992 Series Moftgégd Revenue Bonds with

an interest rate range of 3.25% to 6% to defease the $13,255,000 1988 Series Mortgage Revenue

Bonds. Proceeds from the 1992 Series Mortgage Revenue Bonds were deposited in an escrow
fund used to purchase U.S. Treasury securities, and other direct issuances of federal government
agencies or instrumentalities which, together with the earnings thereon, will pay the remaining

principal, interest, and call premium when due. Neither the assets of the escrow fund nor the R

unpaid principal on the defeased bonds are included in the accompanying balance sheet. At
December 31, 1999, $10,775;000'oi_‘ bonds are considered cheased.

NOTE 19 - LANDFILL POST-CLOSURE CARE = .. ..

During 1986, the City stopped receiving refise in its public landfill. State and federal laws and
regulations require the City to permanently close the landfill and to perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions at the site for thirfy years after closure. This amount is based on what
it would cost to perform all futufe post-closure care in 1996. The Ohio Environmentai
Protection Agency officially certified the closure of the landfill in May, 1996. The remaining
post-closure liability recorded in the Refuse Fund is $1,236,221. This Hability will be paid from
refuse fund revenue. The reporting of the landfill closure and post-closure liability in the refuse
fund follows the guidelines set by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 18.

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to provide financial assurance for post-
closure care costs. The City complied with this requirement by issuing a $1,500,000 Landfill
Improvement Bond in December of 1995. "These proceeds are in a restricted trust account to
finance post-closure care and are reported as restricted assets on the balance sheet (Note 25).
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE20 - CONDUITDEBT .~~~ '~ =~ D L

FE - PR I T TP

The City issued $1,300,000 of First Moitgage Hospital Facilities Revenue Bonds on June 1,
1974. The City also issued $6,240,000 of First Mortgage Hospital Facilities Revenue Bonds on
November 4, 1986. In 1995, the City issued $1,409,428 of debt under a lease-master purchase
agreement between McCullongh-Hyde Hospital, Fifth-Third Bank, and the City for equipment
and building improvements. In August of 1996, the C1ty replaced the 1974 Bond Issue and the
1986 Bond Issue with $6,300,000 of First Mortgage Hospital Facilities Revenue Bonds under a
new lease-purchase agreement between Fifth-Third Bank, the City, and McCullough—Hyde
Memorial Hospital. In 1998, the City issued $3,658,000.of First Mortgage Hospital Facilities
Revenue Bonds under a lease-purchase agreement between Fifth. Third Bank, the City, and_
McCullough-Hyde Memorial Hospital for current and future equipment purchases. The bonds

are o be repaid in varying monthly amounts through Ianuary 1 2013 The amount outstandmg o

at December 31, 1999 is $8,377,860"

Under the terms of the debt agreements, the Hospital is responsible for all principal and interest
payments. The rights to debt service payments on the hospital revenue bonds have been assigned
to a third party financial institution as trustee. The City does not act as agent in any capacity to
collect or disburse debt service payments

The City has no liability for repayment of these bonds and, therefore, they are not 1ncluded in
these financial statements. The Hospital property acts as secunty for the 1ndebtedness

TE 21 — RELATED ORGANIZATIONS =

ER—. Coe e - PR he mlow o a e - o

The Mayor of Oxford, with approval of City Council, appoints the Board of Trustees of
McCuilough-Hyde Hospital, Inc. The City’s accountability for the hospital does not extend
beyond making the appointments. During 1999, the City made no contnbutlons to the Hospital.

NOTE 22 — | ENT LIABILITIES |

Federal and State Grants

The City received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by grantor agencies or.designee. Such audits could lead to a request for reimbursement to
the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under the terrns of the grant. The Clty belleves_
all expenditures meet grant qualifications. :

Litigation T N

The City is of the opinion that ultimate disposition of claims and Iegal proccedmgs w1II not have
a material effect on the financial condition of the City.
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 1999 o

NOTE 23 - SEGMENT INFORMATION . _ .~~~ —

B

The City’s enterprise funds account for the provision of water, sewer, and refuse collection
services. Key financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, for each o
enterprise fiind is as follows:

Water 7 Sewer ) Refuse

Operating revenues - N . $ 2,969_7,72‘7;7 ﬁ _3,624,6710:: 7 71_,33],9-9777,7 7,932,334- :

Operating expenses S I
before depreciation '~ ) 1,307,233 ©_ 1,337,232 934,837 3,579,302 . . ...

Depeciation expense ' _ 433821 . 737.096 ' " 1,959 1172876

Operating income i L 1,228,673 B 1,550,282 401,201 73 180,156

Net non-operating _ o I .

- revenues (expenses) (480,049)  (337,920) (105,540)  (923,509)

Operating transfers out _ - (139,000} - . {135000) . ..

Net income L. 48,624 1073362 295,661 2,117,647

Current contributed capital - 11,145 1,000,000 1,011,145 .

Net working capital 4,492,342 3,894,781 321,392 8,708,515

Total assets 17,511,649 21,268,494 2,361,335 41,141,478

Bonds and other long-term N o : - E
liabilities payable from revenue . 11,223,957 9,658,761 3,278,411 24,161,129 —

Total equity ‘ 5,673,825 . 11,040,039 .. (2,289 968)_ 14,423,896

Total encumbrances $ 310,073 53310 6,048 . 369431

NOTE 24 - SIGNIFICANT CO CTUAL COMMITMENTS =

: FURIN .

As of December 31, 1999, the City had entered into various contracts under Wthh it had a
remaining unperformed total commitment of $2,467,697. ' '

NOTE 25 ~SUBSEQUENTEVENT = = =~ =~ =~ = ==
In October 1999, the City filed a request with the Ohio Envifonmental Protection ‘Agency to
substitute the local government financial test for the funded trust fund as described in Note 19
which the City had used to comply with its financial assurance requirements for the post-closure
costs of its landfill. In March 2000, the request was granted and the post-closure trust fund was
terminated and all funds were released to the City. The balance of the trust ﬁmd returned to the
City was approximately $1.9 million.
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STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund used to account for all financial resources traditionally associated with
governments, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

46



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL o _
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) o '_ S T
GENERAL FUND T S
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance
. Revised o Favorable

_ Budget L Actual 7 {Unfavorable) '

Expenditures:
Current: h
Security of persons and property ) i
Police law enforcement _ 2,252,046 2,161,183 . © 90,863
Traffic control - ~61,005 58985 T 2020 .
Animal control o 27436 27436 . -
Communications 521,194 520,127 S L0670
Firefighting and training - - -186,756 ' 7179916 6,840
Life squad S - T2456 77 68897 T T 73,559 °
Civil defense - _ 8,400 6,993 1,407
Street lighting - 67,000 54036 .~ 12,964
Total security of persons and property 3,196293 3,077,573 " “118720°
Public heath services ) _ . : 7 A ,
Cemeteries ° T 7000 - 6325 . ... T 675
Public health 6,300 6111 ~ 189
Community assistance B o - 59,000 ) 53,864 : _5,136‘ B o
Total public health services 72300 66300 . 6000
- Leisure time activities Coes AR I Cenen el
Senior citizens and community’ center 30,263. _ 26,923 . 3,340
Senior citizens programming 3,000 ‘ ) 3,000 ‘ B . ,
Total leisure time activities c 33263 ., 29923 3340
Community énvironment : : .
Planning department S 234815 1824177 52,398
Building inspection : - 313,535 L. (249,656 . 63,879
- Housing inspection . 4050 4050 - -
Parks and public property 7 - @ 4
Economic development 60,100 © 55,157 o 4,943
Help van * 1,000 1000 -
Total community environment _ 623,500 o 502,2_76 o 7121,2@4 ,

{Continued)
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

General govermnment:
Public information

City manager ' -

Administrative support
Finance department
Income tax collections
Law

Civil service and personnel

Elections

County auditor and treasurer fees
Auditing and consulting fees

Clerk of council
Legislative
Municipal building
City garage’

Court house
Engineering
Insurance
Contingency

Total general government

Total expenditures

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _ (Unfavorable)
239,998 179,079 60,919
- 135,595 127,679 1,916
- 29,605 24,576 5,029
191,930 172,218 19,712
118,220 95813 22,407
145,649 127,637 . 18,012
75,886 © 61,781 14,105
3,000 - 3,000
8,473 8,473 -
31,965 27,700 4,265
97,492 58,790 C 38,702
42,900 . 31,081 11,819
137,404 99,730 37,674
118,961 T 108,074 10,887
) 62,500~ 043,511 18,989 .
117,916 100,842 17,074
98,646 ~ 7 93,126 5,520
67,500 . - _ 67,500
1,723,640 1,360,110 363,530
5,648,996 5,036,182
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for financial resources for. whlch specific uses are

mandated by City ordinances or Federal and State statutes. The title of the fund Is descnptwe of

the activities accounted for therein.

Recreation Fund — To account for monies received and expended for program activities.

Street Fund - Required by State law to account for that portion of the gasoline tax and motor
vehicle license fees designated for maintenance of streets within the City.. )

State Highway Fund - Required by State law to account for that portion of the gasoline tax and_ )

motor vehicle license fees designated for maintenance of state hlghways w1th1n the City.

Community Development Block Grani Fund - To account for monies received from the federal
government under the Community Development Block Grant Progra.m '

Community Development Block Grant Loan Fund - To account for monies recelved from the

federat government under the Community Development Block Grant Program The monies are T

“used for economic development loans. -

Parking Meter Fund - To account for operation of parking control activities within the City,
funded by revenues from meter collections and fines.

r

Law Enforcement Fund - To account for monies received from the Stdie for purposes of drug
- enforcement. : 7 ; L e

Enforcement and Education Fund - To account for monies recelved from the State for pmposes
of law enforcement and education. - , T

Life Squad Fund --To account for contributions from private sources for the purpose of

improving life squad services in the City and surroundmg area. © 0T L
. Recreation Gift Fund - To account for contnbutlons from pnvate sources to beneﬁt the parks
and recreation facilities of the City. ’

Tri-Centennial Fund - To account for receiving and 1nvest1ng contnbuhons to be expended for

an appropriate Tri-Centennial celebration.
Affordable Housing Fund - To assist the people of the City in obtaining affordable housing.

Tree Fund - To plant and maintain trees in the City. S -

Federal COPS Fund - To account for grants to, be spent for security of persons and property.
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET.
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 199%

Assets:

Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Due from other governments
- - Supplies inventory

' Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Due to other governments

Compensated absences payable
Advances from other funds

Total liabilitics

Fund Equity:

Fund Balanges: . . . -
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventory

- Unreserved-undesignated

Total fund equity

Total liabilities and fund equity

3

Community
Community Development

State Development Block Grant  Parking

Recreation Street . Highway Block Grant Loan Meter
—— = g T = = LT BN O

109918 105,106 4623 . 140480 456,970 465,058

-2 - - - :

- 18,223 1,179 14,649 . - -

- 56,821 - - ' - -

109,918 180,262 5,802 155,129 _ 456,970 465,058

- - - 11,445 - -

- 4,189 - - - 751

- 2,987 - - - 768

464 - 2,688 - - - 210

- - - 150,000 - -

464 9,864 - 161,445 - 1,729
16 4217 . e -7 a0

- 56,821 - - ) - - .
109,338 109,360. . . 5,802 (7,006). " 456,970 450,579

109,454 170,398 5,802 - {6,316y 456,970 " 463,329

109,918 180,262 . 5,802 . 155,129 456,970 465,058
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Enforcement _ 3 - - R
Law . and Life Recreation Tri- Affordable Federal T
. Enforcement  Education Squad  Gift ~ Ceniennial Housing - Tree =~ COPS _TOTAL

vy - boug - — . =
C - = -

12,313 6,282 29296 1390 6172 44654 42350 - 1424612

- 75 . e T e e st 187
' s . 234,051

- = : I S e L S o AT k. o S S el SRR ,,56’821 .i__g;,"—
12,313 6,357 25,2% 1,380 . 6,172 44,654 42,350 . - .- 1,515,671

. . == e 2365 T - T 14210

- - - - e me e m et 4980

- i - R .- - . - N Rl . 'H,', . s 3;362

- . R T 2765 . - 176267

2,251 - 1,200 e - 2886 .. - 24110
= AP . e . : T L 56’821_
10,062 . 6357 _ 2809 _ 1390 6172 44654 36699 - 1,258,473

12,313 . 6,337 29,296 ,,1,390___ T.6,172 ., 44654

T d — =

39,585 - T 1339404

E .

_1

12,313 | 6,357 29296 1390 _ 6,172 44,654 42350 . - 1515671

- N A T ™
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS e
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

- Community
Community Development

) State Development Block Grant  Parking
Recreation  Sweet  Highway Block Grant Loan . Meter
Revenunes: i
Intergovernmental s - 238,820 15,453 268,585 - : -
Charges for services ' . 185,202 S e T T - = . 185,059
Fines, costs and forfeitures ' - - - - C - 66,934
Interest . -. . . - 4223 . 179.. - 19,405 ° 19,873 |
Contributions 14,877 T . - e S Cat
Other 2,234 2,146 - - - 20
Total revenues 202,313 245,189 1_5,6_32 268,585 - '7'_7.77.179,{-05 .. 271,886
Expenditures: - _
Current: . o = -
Security of personsand property = 7 ’ . T = = - -t - - -
Letsure time activities ’ 665,477 - - : - N -
Community envitonment =~ i - - = - 204,743 - - .-
Transportation - 511,978 13,180 - - 119,887 .
General government - ) - - - s -
Total expenditures 665477 511,978 13,180 264,743 _ - 119,887
Excess of revenues over o o : T : S
(under) expenditures (463,164) _ (266,789) 2452~ 3.842 19,405 151,999
Other financing sources (uses) - .
Operating transfers in 480,000 ° 268,000 - = - - -
Operating transfers out ’ o B = - IS ~ - (140,000}
Total other financing sources (uses) ~480,000 268,000 - - - {140,000)
Excess ofrevenues and other sources over e e e . }
(under) expenditures and other uses 16,836. 1,211 . 2452 3,842 19,405 11,999
Fund balance at beginning of year - ) . S2618 166,949 3350 . (10,158) . 437,565 451,330
Increase in reserve for inventory = =~ - T 7 T R Jv A} - - - -
Residual equity transfer ’ = . = T el - - -
Fund balance at end of year 5 109,454 170,398 . 5,802 (6,316) 456,970 463,329
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Enforcement

Law and Life

Recreation

Tr- ~ Affordable

Federal

Enforcement  Education . Squad . Gift _(jé_l_lfer’mjzi]” Housing ©~ Tree = COPS . " TOTAL .
: L T T T T T T e E e AT T A
- - 4,304 - - 16312 - - sa3474
- - Ce e s - - - ;o 370261 ~ _
1,225 2417 - - - - - - L0518 T, T T
541 233 . 1,030 9 263 . - - - 45,806 ,
350 - "7.573 - - 7,065 R - 29865 T "
2,116 2650 12907 59 263 . 23377 - . = 1064382
T i = T TR E o A s
2,716 2,000 9,531 - R . e (1,165) 13,082
_ - - ES - B - = {a N . . -‘ S . —.6654477;
- - - - - S~ 37219 25,022 - .. 326984
- - N - e - 645,085 ]
- — T e e R e ek et e T
2716 2,000 9,531 - _-.._ 37219 _ 25022 " (1,165) 1,650,588 ;
{600) 650 3,376 LS9 263 _ (13842) (25022 1,165 - (586206).

- - . - -~ 15000 . 20000 - . 783000

- - - - S oeeme ==, (l40000) o

- - - - - < -T150000 . 20000 0 - L T - sa3dos T T 7 T
) T LA el R s 'ﬁ )"l'-—.?i—-""':r et P

_ (600) 650 59

12,913 5,707

[P -

1,331

263

5000 43496

T L158

(5.022) 1,165 56,794 e

44507 7820 128936 !

. s e e m e e L 22380 ..

: P . MO - |
12,313 6357 29296 1390 61727 "A46s4 39585 T . S 1339404 .
il - . SR o [ P e b i
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO . L .

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

RECREATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

} Variance
Ravised Favorable
Budget ~__Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: . '

Charges for services = 8 186,600 185,600 _ o Z (1,000)

Contributions o . ) 13,600 14,877 L2277

Other : - 2233 . . .2233 _ =
Total revenues ] ] _ 200,200 . 202710 S2.510
Expenditures:

Current:

Leisure time activities ’ T T e e - Co

Swimming pool ‘ ' 83,745 - 84,996 . 49

Programs ) 362,334 358,793 . 3,541

Playgrounds and playfields 118,469 117,624 845

Concession - N , . 13,404 o 13,404 o -

Special events : - 13438 . - 13,438 -

Administration 98,782 ) 95,904 . 2,878
Total expenditures - ‘ - : 6921727 684,159 . 8013
Excess of revenues over {(under) expenditures S {49197y (481,449) . o 10,523 .
Other financing sourcés: -

Operating transfers in T T T 480,000 D '1180_,000'_ ST T
Total other financing sources - _ 480,000 480,000 -
Excess oﬁrevcnues and other sources L. ' - I

over (under) expenditures - {11,972) ~ (1,449 10,523
Fund balance, beginning of year o T 110927 o 110927 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated 321 321 -
Fund balance, end of year % 99276 109,799 © 10,523
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND _

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
STREET FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Charges for services =T
Interest
Other

Total revenunes

Expenditures:
Current:
- Transportation

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in °

-Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of vear

$

‘$_
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B Variahce
Revised o _ Favorable
Budget Actual _{Unfavorable)

243,000 240,155 ©(2,845)
1200 1,920 720
5,000 4773 Ty
T N S R
249,200, 247,020 .. (2,180)
545695 523,804 21801
545,695 523,804 21,891
- (296,495) (276,784) 19711
268,000 . 268000 . T -

- 268,000 T " 268000 -
@A) T @Emay i
109,673 109,673 -

81,178 100,889



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIQ

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

{(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
STATE HIGHWAY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Transportation

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$

56

(Unfavorablej 7

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual
15,000 15,538 538
50 . 179
15050 15717 667
150000 13,179 1,821
- 15000 13,179 1,821
50 2,538 2,488
2,085 2,085 -
2,135, 2,488

4,623
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO , ) _
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

' CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) -

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
_ Budget = Actual V(Unfavor_able) o
Revenues: . - . o ”“
Intergovernmental o o $ 368,891 293272 (75619
Total revenues ) o 368,891 293,272 (75.619)
Expenditures:
Current: - o i S - : . ) -
Community environment , o 332,732 .. - 286,242 . 46490
Total expenditures CT ‘ < 3327732 _ 286,242 Y | 46,490_‘_
-Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures . 36,159 o 7,030 (29,129)
Fund balance, beginning of year . o T v"~81,583.,- o B1,583_ . -
Prior year epcumbrances appropriated ' 38,732 . T 39,732 =
Fund balance, end of year © 8 157,474 . 128345 . (29,129)
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO } N

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 7
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) o B
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT LOAN FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
_Budget Actual (Unfavorable} L
Revenues: _ S T '7 B
Interest , 3 - 3,000 .. 19,405 16,405
Other : : . 500 . - {500)
Total revenues : 7 3,500 . ~ 18,405 15,905
Expenditures:
Current: : : o - o o -
Comymunity environmert , 432000 -~ - 432000
Total expenditures .. 432000 - _ 432,000
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures . ooo(428,500 . 19,405 447,903
Fund balance, beginning of year o - ) - 437,565 437,565 <L E
Fund balance, end of year, ) _ 3 9,063 © 456970 . 4479035
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
PARKING METER FUND .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

- Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual ~ (Unfavorable)
Revenues: : Co = - - L ..—,' L

Charges for services . . _ - 185,000 185,058 S 58 0

Fines, costs, and forfeitures ‘ © o - 130,000 T 66,934 ’ (63,066)

Interest , o S 23000 19873 - (3127

Other : : - 20 20 L
Total revenues _ 338,000 271,885 ~ T(66,115)
Exzpenditures:

Current: - L o -

Transportation 184,074 138,520 © 45,554
Total expenditures 184,074 138,520 - 45,554 .
Excess of révenues over expenditures 153,926 133365 . - (20,561)
Other finapcing uses: : . ‘

Operating transfers out - (140,000)  ° (140,000) -
Total other financing uses (140,000 (140,000) - L
Excess of revenues over (under) _ ) S o

expenditures and other uses 13,9287 (6,635), . . "(20,561)
Fund balance, beginning of year . 448,100 448,100 Co-

Prior year encumbrances appropriated 10,843 -~ __ 10,843 ~ -
C e - < T M
Fund balance, end of year | s 452,308
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL ,

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND o
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues:
Fines, costs, and forfeitures
Interest.
Contributions -

Total revenues
Expenditaures:

Current:
Security of persons and property

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures.

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

S

60

2,358 .

S

Variance
Revised ‘ Favorable
Budget Actual B (Unfavorable) .
- 1,435 " 1,435
- 541 541
) - . 350 © 2350
- 12,326 Co23260
5000 4,968 32
© 5,000 4968 32
. {5,000) (2,642) 2,358.
- 12,703 12,703 ) -
7,703 10,061



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN b
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) .
ENFORCEMENT AND EDUCATION FUND

[

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999

Revenues:
Fines, costs, and forfeitures
Interest

Total revenues
Expenditures;

Current:
Security of persons and property

Total cxpendltures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year —
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Variahca
Revised o Favorable
Budget Actual - {Unfavorable)
2000 2517 - _ 517
100~ 233 0 133
2,100 2750 . 650
2000 | 2,000 R
200070 © 2000 0 -
100 750 650
5532 . 5532 -

3,632 C . 6,282 - 630

T e



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO o N
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL | S
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) . .. . . . _ .. ... ..
LIFE SQUAD FUND o , - ' - -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance
Revised _ Favorable
. Budget Actual . (Unfavorable}
Revenues: B )
Intergovernmental $ 4,000 4304 . ) 304
Interest 750 1,029 . 279
Contributions ' I, 2,500 . - TSI 507
Total revenues | ) . 72500 0 12906 . 5,656
Expenditures: _
Current: . ’
Security of persons and property - 14700 10,731 3,969
_ Total expenditures , 14700 1073t 3,969
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (7450 2175 7
Fund balance, beginning of year _ _ S@70 0 2470 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated - 1201 1,261 -
Fund balance, end of year ) : T -$ 18,471 28,096 19,625
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' CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO o
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) . ) _
RECREATION GIFT FUND o -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance
Revised , Favorable
, Budget " Actial ' (Unfavorable)
Revennes: .

Interest : _ % 50 . .59 N
Total revenues o B - 0 59 . .8
Expenditures:

Total expenditures L - R .-
Excess of revenues over expenditures : . 50 . . 59 _ .9
Fund balance, beginning of year . T oo 1,331 ) 1,331 ] -
. Fund balance, end of year- = = R 1,381 1,390 9
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO = =~ L.

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXl;EHD'ITURES’ANb f |
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
TRI-CENTENNIAIL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues:
Interest

Total revenues .

Expenditures:

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

37

Vanance
Revised Favorable .
Budget Actual N (Unfavorable)
225 T 262 37
225 7T n262 © 37,
225 262
5,909 5909 -

6,134

6,171

37




CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL _

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 :

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Interest
Contributions '

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Comumupity environment
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other figancing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures and other (uses) .

Fund balance, beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance, ead of year -

65

$

. Vartance

Revised Favorable

Budget Actual _ (Unfavorable) )

- S 16312, ~ .. 16,312
1,000 - ~ (1,000)

- 4000 7065 . 3065,
5,000 23377 _ 3,065
55180 37218 17962~
55,180 37218 17,962
(50,180) (13,841) 36,339 .
15,000 15,000 -

(100,000) ~(100,000) -

- (85,000) (85,000) -

(135,180)  (98.841) 36,339

115816 - 115816 -
27679 T 21619 -
8,315 44,654 36,339




CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AN

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
TREE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues:
Licenses, permits, and inspecticns -

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Community environment

Total expenditures
-Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sonrces:
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources S

Excess of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Prior year encurnbrances appropriated

Fund balance, end of year

D ACTUAL .

-]

66

Variance
Revised Favorable
Buc_igctl - Actual _ {Unfavorable}
50765 . 33,508 17,257
50765 33,508 17,257
(50,765) (33,508) 17,257
20,000 20000 -
20,000 20000
T @67esy T (13,508) 17,257
31,607 31,607 -
15,766 15766 .- R
16,608, =

33,865 .




CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO -
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) '
FEDERAL COPS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
- ... . _. Budget ~_Actual _ (Unfavorable)

Revennes:
Intergovemmental b - - .-

Total revenues , L B : ) ' )

Expenditures:
Current: . - o B
Security of persons and property ) - S .

Total expenditures ‘ o ' - L

Excess of expenditures over revenues o -- e - -

Other financing uses: . S ) . - -
Operating transfers out : o (8999 - (89%) -

Total other financing uses

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures and other uses (8994 (8594 o -

A —

Fund balance, beginning of year D S - 8,994 8,994 o -

Fund balance, end of year o -3 - - _ o
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
TOTAL ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenpes:
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines, costs and forfeitures
Interest
Contributions .
Licenses, permits, and inspections
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Security of persons and property
Leisure time activities
Community environment
Transportation

Total expenditures
BExcess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources - o ST

Excess of revenues and other sources
over {under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, beginning of yedr

Prior year encumbrances appropriaied

Fund balance, end of year

$

8
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Variance
Revised L _ Favorable
Budget Acgual (Unfavorablc)l .
630,891, 569,581 (61,310)
© 372,800 372578 )
132,000 ?0 886 . (61,114)
33,175 45,804 12,629
20,100 29,865 N
500 . 2975 T 2475
1,189466.  .1091,689 (97,777
21,700 17,699 4,001
692,172 684,159 8,013
870,677 © 356968 513,709
744,769 675,303 .0 68,266
2,329,318 1,734,329 594,989
(1,139,852) (642,640) 497,212
783,000 783,060 .
(248,994) (248.994) - -
534,006 " 534,006, . . -
(605846) (108,634) 497212
1,396,545 . 1,396,545 -
95,542 95,542 -
886,241 1,383,453

497212 .




'DEBT SERVICE FUND =~

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt pmnmpal and interest.

Since there.is onIy one debt service fund and the level of budgetary control is not greater than
that presented in the combined financial statements, no additional financial statements are
presented here. . o
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Pro;ects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.

Capital Improvement Fund - To_account for ﬁnanmal resources. f'or the acqulsltlon or
construction of various capltal prOJects T LTI ERS L T :

T

Parking Lot Improvement Fund - To account for ﬂnanc:lal Tesources used for the achIISltIOIl

construction, or lmprovement to mun101pa1 parklng Tots. e | ™

Capital Fquipment fund - To ,account. for ﬁnancnal resources used for the acqulsltlon of
equipment. _ SR o e e e

Land Acquisition Fund - To account for financial resources used for the acquisition of land.

PR
o (RPN \

s P .

Larks and Qpen Spaces Fund - To account for ﬁnancza] resources used for the achus1t10n of or

improvements to parks and open spaces. oo S
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CITY OF OXFORD, ORIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Assets:

Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents
Receivables: ‘
Special assessments

Total assets.

Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Retainage payable
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Equity:

Fund Balances: i
Reserved for encurmbrances
Unreserved

Total fund equity

Total liabilities and fund equity

Capital Parking Lot Capital Land Parks and
improvement Improvement Equipment Acquisition Open Spaces TOTAL
i - = B A T ey " " —:i""—"v‘-.;‘r‘.' — .__,_;;1.'_..,7"—'\;::,;
1,045,623 . 12,075 759433 . 29427 4,859,390  _ 7,579,463
46,208 - - - ST 46208
o T T T T T T e AR T o A E
1,991,831 12,075 759,433 | 2,942 4,859,390 7,625,671
- - . 20590. . . - e 20,590 ©
22318 - - - -87.238 109,556 -
- - - 6,367 _ 6367, ..
46,208 - - - T 46208
68,526 .. 20800 - sagos . 1szmal
718,284 1,500 341,080, i 1554828 2,615,662
1,205,021 10,575 397,793 T 2942 3,210,957 4,827,288
= - e BT - e 7—7:1”:‘_ - — -
1,923305 . 12,075 738,843 2,942 4,765,785 7,442,950
1,991,831 12,075 759,433 7 2942~ 4,859,390 17,625,671
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

" EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues:
Intergavernmental
Charges for services
Special assessments
Interest
Contributions -

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over _
" (under) expenditures -

Other financing sources

Proceeds from sale of bonds

Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources over

{(under) expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund batance at end of year

Capital I Parking Lot Capital Land Parks and
Improvement Improvement Equipmen! Acquisition Open Spaces .~ TOTAL 7
30,849 - - - - 30,849
50 - - - - 50
7242 .- - C - o 7242
: . - - 513 52,135
- S TAM - - 10,000 17,444
¥ i L I e T T T T
38,141 - 7,444 - 62,135 107,720
- - S Caa e i — = T T e LT T .t
708,442 8,877, _" 195,970 - 01203 1214492
708442 8877 | 195970 - 301208 1214492
(670301)  ~ (8,877)  (i88,526) (239068 (1,106,772)

. . - .- .3915000 0 3,915,000
1,200,000 . 20,000 250,000 oo 9TAT64 2444764
(1200000 20,000 2500000 T L7 4889764 6359764

529,699 C1L123 T 61474 T . 4,650,696 5,252,992
~1,393,606 _ 952 677,369 2,942 115089 2,189,958
1023305 12,075 738843 29437 4765785 7,442,950
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO L
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) o
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

- Variance

3,737

Revised Favorable ,
_ Budget - Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: . o , , - _
Special assessments $ 6,723 . 7242 .. 519
Intergovernmental 7 _ 265,000 268,737 -
Total revenues - . , g g 7 N Y= R 275979 74,256
Expenditures: . , Lo .
Capital outlay : - 2,645,186 1,638,933 . .. 1,006,253
Total expenditures o T - 2,645,186 1,638,933 - ..1,006,253
Excess of revenues o T A o T L -
over (under) expenditures o (2,373,463) . (1,362,954) 1,010,509 ~ -
Other financing sources: : h ) -
~Operating transfers in L -7 1L200,0000 1,200,000 o -
Total other financing sources ST 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 -
Excess of revenues and other sources’ _ B o ' C '
over (under) expenditures _(1,173,463) (162,954) 1,010,509
Fund balance, beginning of year __~ _ .7 /8B4,989 ~  BB34989% -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 7 482,987 482987 -
- — . 1,010,509

Fund balance, end of year . . .8 194513 1,205,022
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO ' - _
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) .
PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget N Actual o (Unfavorable) 7
Revenues: '
Total revenues . I o - v
Expenditures: ) .

Capitai outiay : 18,000 . 10,378 A 7,022
Total expenditures -~ _ _ . -___18poo. 10378 - 782
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures (18,600) (10378 7,622
Other firancing sources: ' - ' ] . '

Operating transfers in : : . 20,000 ' 20,000 - , -
Total other financing sources - =~ =~ 20,000 _ 20,0007 et
Excess of revenues and other sources : S o o

over expenditures : 52,0007, 9,622 . 7,622
Fund balance, beginning of year 7 o882 952 . T -
Fund balance, end of year - = 2952 . 10,574 7,622 -
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO .

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET ANDACTUAL .
{(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) ' * - T
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT FUND "

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 o
- . S Variance
Revised . , Favorable
Budget o Actual - (Unfavorable)
Revennes: : o '
Contributions ) - o % 15000 ..~ 7444  (1,556) T
Total revenues - - 15,000 o 7444 (7,556) . ‘. )
Expenditures: -
Capital outlay , 7 553,920 .. 537018 16,902
Total expenditures - L _ . 553920 . . T 537,018 L 16,902 X
- -Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures, . (538,920) . 77,(52:’_9«,5‘74)':__ L 9,346 .
Other financing sources: . :
Operating transfersin =~~~ v 250,000 . . 250,000 ST
Total other financing sources o e 250,000 250,,007{)(: o _ - .
E);cess of revenues antd other sources .- C - -
* over (under) expenditures - Co- (2889200 . (279,574) . T 934e -
Fund balance, beginning of year , 7 - 656,548 ... 656,548 : -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated -~ 20820 20820 00 -
Fund balance, end of year - $: 388,448 - 397,794 7 T 9346 .
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO _ ,

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) ) _ _ .
LAND ACQUISITION FUND o ' o
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 |

Variance
Revised , Favorable
Budget .= =~ _Actual _(Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Total revenues . 3 - - -
Expenditures: .
Total expenditures S ] e I P

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures = - -

Fund balance, beginning of year o Lo 2%42 - . 2542 . -

Fund balance, end of year . - -3 2,942 ' 2,942 .-
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
PARKS AND OPEN SPACES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,:15_’99

Revenues:
Interest
Contributions

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:

Proceeds from sale of bonds -

Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources

over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance, end of year -

- Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget _Actual - (Unfavorable)
- 44814 43814
- 10,000 10,000
- 54814 54,814
1,989,052 . 1853110 135942
. 1,989,052 . 15853110 135942
(1,989,052)  ° (1,798,296) 190,756
3915000 39232 . 7322
974,764 - 974,764 N
4,889,764 4,897,086 7322
2900712 3,008,790 - - 198,078
114381 114,381 -
4152 4152 -
3,019,245 3,217,323 . . 198,078
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-

CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO o
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND _
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL. | S
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS) ' ' R

TOTAL ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance
Revised A Favorable
Budget ~ Actual (Unfavorable) = .
 Revenues: ' : _
Intergovernmental 3 265,000 268,737 - ST 3,737
Special assessments . ‘ - . 26723 7 7,242 ' 519
Contributions L 15,000 C 17444 7 - 2444
Interest ‘ - - '.-44314,, — 44,814 s
Total revenues . ' . 286;723 S 338',23'7- S 51,514
Expenditures: , - :
Capital outlay 5,206,158 4,039,430 T 1,166,719
Total expenditures ) - 5,206,158 4039439 . L166,719 |
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures ('4,91-9,4'3'5.)4 B (3,701,202)1- - "_;1,218,2,3\!3' _
Other financing sources: ©~ .~ . ‘ . —_ ] : o
Proceeds from sale of bonds _ 3,915,000 3,922,322 . 7,322
Operating transfers in ' - 2444764 2444764 0 - _
Total other financing sources . . A " 6,359,764 6,367,086 s - o
Excess of revenues and other sources - 7 ) : .
over expenditures ' .- 1,440,320 7 . 2,665,884 1,225,555 .
Fund balance, beginning of year  ~ ~ . 1,659812° 1659812 . -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 507,959 307,95~ -
Fund balance, end of year : $ 3,608,700 . 4,833,655 . .1225555 .

i
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS.

Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations where the intent of the City is that the
costs of providing goods Or Services on a contmumg basis be recovered pnrnanly through user

charges. - e T e s

Water Fund — To account for the provision of water service to_the City and surroundmg areas.

Sewer Fund — To account for the provision of sanitary sewer sérvice to the City and surrounding
areas. ‘ . R TR

Refuse Fund ~ To account for the provision of refuse collection and disposal semces to the Clty
as well as costs associated with the municipal landfill post-closure monitoring. - o
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CITY DF DAFORD, DO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,199%

Assets:

Current assets: 7
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts »
Special assessments
Trterest
Prepaid items -
Materials and supplies inventory
Advance to other funds
" Deferred charges
Total current assets

Restricted asses: - - -
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

“Total restricted assets

Long-term assets:
Fixed assets {net of accumulated deprecxatmn)
Advance to other funds

Total long-term assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Equity:

Liabilities:
Current lizbilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued salaries payable
Due to other governments
Deferred contributed capitai
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of advance from other funds

Current portion of mortgage revenue bonds payable

Current portion of OWDA loans payable
Total current labitities

Liabilities payable from re_s&icted asgets: .
Landfill post-closure care payable
Total liabilities payable from restricted assets

Long-term liabilities:

Mortgage revenue bonds payable (net of current portion)

OWDA Loans payable (net of current portion)
Compensated absences payable
Pension obligation payable

“Advance from other funds (net of current portmn)

- Total long-term labilities
Total liabilities

Fund Equity:
Contributed capital
Retained eamings:
Reserved for replacement and improvement
Unreserved (deficit) )

Total fund equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund equity

i Water Sewer “Refuse TOTAL ‘
T $ 3921746 4084686 398,156 8.404,588
218528 294,604 12.664 525,796
- - - - 62,568 - 62,569
27,961 - 33059 61,020
3T . 14,184 17,956
81.844 22,616 - 104,460
260,000 S - 200,000
o . 147,358 - - - 147,358 ©
) Ae0L209  adeadTs 458063 C (9833741 T
- e e TR L T T T R L
16,255 - 13an 29676
1,205,924 . 1,838,55% © 3,044, 483 ,
1,222,179 T hRs1bs0 3074159
Ti1.488261° 16,804,019 51,292 28,343,572
© 200,000 . = - - " 200,000
11,688,261 16,804,019 5199‘7 7 29543572 i
17,511,649 21,268,494 2361 335 ' 4: 141478
) . 26,032 ° 42,069 2,271 70,372
C . - 23,156 59,632 82,788
10,758 - - 10,758
3749 9,418 899 19,066
5,690 5721 488 11,899
' . 62,569 - 62,569
57,638 - - 57,638 i
. 200,000 - 200,000
505,000 oo- - 505,000
] - 226761 73381 300,142
- TGigeT | seocs 66Tl _izogn U
- . - 1236221 1,236221
- ~ lasedat U L23el’
11,135,000 Cs - .- 1135000
- . 9361147 3,126,441 12,487,588
66,329 74,937 - 141,266
22628 me17 1970 47275
: - 200000 150,000 = 350,000 _
11223057 0658761 3278411 24, I6l 129 -
2L e =R -
i 11,837,824 10228455 4,651,303 26 717 582 _ _
1,558,532 6301814 1,110,991 8.971,337
160,171 - - 160,171
3955122 4738225 _ (3:400,959) 5,292,383 )
) 5673825 11,040,039 (2,289,968 14, 423 896 '
§ 17511649 21,268,494 2361333 41 141473
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO -
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
~ Personal services.
Contractual services
Supplies and materials
Othex
Depreciation -

- Total operating expenses
- Operating income

Nou-operating revenues (€xpenses):
Interest revenue :
Interest and fiscal charges

Total non-gperating revenues (expenses)
Net income before operating transfers

Operating transfers out

Net income

Retained eamnings (deficit) at beginning of year
-~ Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year

Contributed capital at beginning of year
Special assessments
— Capital contributions received

Contributed capital at end of year

Total fund equity (deficit) at end of year

(139,000

81

Water Sewer Refuse ) TOTAL
2920211 3,571, 647 1,337,981 ©7,829,839°

49,516 52963 .. . 16 102,495

- T ST -
2969727 3624610 1337997 7932334

T13,646 - 801 863 7. 65143 1,640,652
321,608 362,744 844361 T 158713

68,105 94,451 23062 185618
143,874 78,174 227100 224319
-433,821 737,096 ° 1959 1172876
1,741,054 2,074,328 . 936796 4,752,178
1,228,673 1,550,282 '_ . 401,201 3,180,156

251,922 165,943 . 94,034 511899
L (731971 | (503863)  (199,574)  (1:435408)
_ (480,049) (337,920) (105 540) (923 509)

- -~ - - A

748,624 1,212,362 295,661 2,256,647
) - - (139,000). -

748,624 1,073,362 295,661, 2,117,647
3,366,669 3,664,863  (3,696,620) 3,334,912
4,115,203 4738225  (3,400959) 5452,559
1,558,532..7 6,290,669 ° - 110,991 7,960,192

- 11,145 - 11,145
- - 1,000,000 © " 1,000,000
1,558,532.7 7 6,301,814 1,110,991 8,971,337
5,673,825 11,040,039  (2,289,968) 14,423,896



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL ENTERFRISE FUNDS N _
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers -
Cash payments for employee services and benef ts
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for landfill post-closure
Cash payments for other operating expenses
Cash received from other operating revenues

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Capital contributions received

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets

Advance in

Advance out

Transfers out

Principal paid on OWDA loans

Principal paid on mortgage revenue bonds
Principal paid on revenue bonds

Interest paid on OWDA loans

Interest paid on mortgage revenue bonds
Interest paid on revenue bonds

Proceeds from OWDA loans

Capital contributed by special assessments

Net cash used for capital and related financing activitiégs™ ™~

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest _
Purchase of investments
Redemption of investtnents

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ~
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

82

-

Water Sewer Refuse ~_ToT4L
2,947,468 3,606,074 1335458 7,889,000
(780,905) (809,855  (67,949) _ (1,658,709)
(427.454)  (563,974) (828,238)  (1,819,666)
7 T - (32,898) . (32,898)
(159,568) (55,570 e {215,138)
4,116 163 ~ 16 4,295.
1,583,657, 2,176,838 406,389 4,166,884
B} - 1,000,000 1,000,600
- = 1,000,000 1,000,000 °
(1,116,224)  (254,316) - (1,370,540)
-200,000 7. - 150,000 350,000
- (200,000} - (200,000)
- . (139,000 g (139,000)
- (495,819)  (192,095) "(687,914)
(480,000) - - (480,000}
- Do- 0 (1,350,000)  '(1,350,000)
- (503,863)  (145481) (649,344)
(716,136) - - (716,136)
) I - (61,271) (61,271)
. 97,696 - 97,696
3 - 11,145 - 11,145
(2,112,360) (1,484,157) (1,598,847)  (5,195,364)
264,331 165,943 . 125,766 556,040
(1,210,598) - (1,233,117) (2,443,715)
1,208,818 - 1,146294 2355112
262,551 165943 = 38943 467,437
(266,152) 858,624  (i53,515) 438,957
4,204,153 3226062 565092 7995307
3,938,001 4,084,686 411,577 8,434,264
i T " {Coatinued)



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS . o
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Continued)
- - Water Sewer Refuse.  TOTAL
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash )
provided by operating activities:
Operating income ‘ Coo st T L228,673 0 1,550,282, 1L 401,200 3,180,156
Adjustments o reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operatiing activities:
Depreciation - . 433821 737,086 - 1,959 1172876
Changes i1 assets and liabilities: . S L : i o )
Accounts receivable o 7 : o (1_&,143) (18,373 @523 (39,039
Prepaid items _ _ : 641 572 (IL4TH T (10,264)
Materials and supplies inventory  ~ T T (33,402) (7419) - (40,821)
Accounts payable _ . (23.291) 184 (1,395)  (24,502)
Contracts payable N i (1,152)  (86,405) 56,046 ° - (3L,5TDH
Accried salaries payable ' ' 2,758 T375T 222 0, 6,737
Due to other governments - - - (16,396)  (16943)  (1,735) (35,074)
Compensated absences payable ) - 7,884 12,258 (6,729 T 13,413
Pension obligation payable _ 2,264 1,829 .9 4,184
Landfill post-closure payable ) ] , } - 7 - (29,27 1) o (29.271) o
Net cash provided by operating activittes T 1,583,657 2,1'76,838 ) 4!()6,589 k_ 4,166,884
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of services provided by one
department to other departments of the City, on a cost-reimbursemient basis.

Employee Benefits Fund — To actumulate monies for the payment of employee health insurance,
life insurance and medical claims under a sélf-insuréd plan. " The City charges departments for
insurance and pays actual claims, administrative costs, and insurance premiums from this fund.

- Internal Service Fund ~ To account for ﬁnancmo of servmes prcmded by one department to
another department for postage gasohne and copies.’ '
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO ~ _ : S ]

COMBINING BALANCESHEET =~ 7 70 = oo e
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ~ ° o S
DECEMBER 31, 1999 o - - '
. Emmployee - Internal ‘
Beneﬁts_ ~ Service TOTAL o
Assets: : o
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 5 . 395098 . - 53,968 449,066
Accounts receivabie 4,161 - 4,161
Materials and supplies inventory - - - 10,419 10,419 ]
Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation) ) - 12,805 12,805
Total assets - - L. 399259 . 77,192 476451
Liabilities: _ . ,
Accounts payable ' - 7,159 7,159
" Claims payable ‘ _ 46,882 - .- 46,882
Capital lease payable — : - 7877 7877 .
Total liabilities L S . 46882 15036 61918
Fund Equity: _
Retatned earnings: - - -- - S . I TN U
Unreserved ] o 352377 © 62,156 414,533
Total fund equity . 352,377 L 62,156 C ‘414,533
Total liabilitics and fund equity s 399,259 77,192 476,451
’ ‘ T [ -
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO S ’ o
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, . ' -

EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS S -

.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 S 7
Employee Internal
. - .. .Bemefits  ~ Service = TOTAL
Operating revenues: )

Charges for services ] . 548,693 . . 73,274 621,967 .
Total operating revenues S 548,603 . 73274 621,967
Operating expenses: B

Contractual services ~ = - . 118,286 = - - 118,289

Supplies and materials : - . -70,955 ‘ 70,955

Claims - 485,424 . 485,424

Depreciation : S - .= . .. 3681 3,681 :
Total operating expenses _ ) 603,713 74,636 . 678349
Operating loss. - : L _,_(5-,5,020)__” (1,362) 638y
Non;operating revenues (expelis!eés): B SR

Interest revenue . 17,765 -~ 2,372 20,137

Interest and fiscal charges = {756y (156)
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) - 17,765 1,616 , _' 19,381 -
Net income . (37,255 254 (37,001}
Retained earnings at beginning of year ~ © 389,632 . 61,902 451,534
Retained earnings at end of year . 8 352,377 62,156~

" 414,533 o
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO _

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from quasi-exiernal operating
transactions with other funds
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services .- ..
Cash payments for employee miedical claims
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Principal payments on capital lease
Interest payments on capital lease

Net cash used for capital and related financing act1v1t1es

Cash flows from investing activi_ti_es:
- Interest

Net cash provided by mvcstzng activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year _

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating loss - -

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operatnng activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and Liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies inventory
Accounts payable
Claims payable .

Net cash provided by operating activities

87
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A

. 419,066, I .

(36,69

Employee Internal
Benefits . Service - TOTAL
© 2595 2595
5445327 70,679 615211
LLoo- . (69,869) (69,869)
(584,636) S (384.636)
C{a0,104) 3405 (36,699)
- (2,839) (2,839)
- (56 (18
(3,595 . (3,595
17,765 2372 20,137
©< 17,765 2372
(22,339)  2,182° . (20,15T) -
417,437  SL786 469,223 .. . ..
395,098 53,968 .
_(55020),  (1,362) . (56,382)
- 3681 3,681
@16y - - (@4,161)
- (5413) (5413)
- 6,499 6,499
19077 T 194077
(40,104) 3405



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The City’s Fiduciary Funds are agency funds which are used to account for assets held ina

custodial capacity.

Cemetery Fund ~ Used as a clearing fund for revenues collected by the City for the trustees Qf a
local cemetery.

Board of Building Standards Fund — To account Jor monies received on buﬂdmg penmts Wthh o

will be disbursed to the State of O}:uo

Hotel Tax Fund — Used as a clearing fund for guest tax revenues collected by the C1ty from ‘

hotels within the City for the benefit of the visitors and conventlon “bureau.

Community Improvement Corporation Fund — Used as a clearing fund for contributions recewed 7

and subsequently remitted to the Oxford Community Improvement Corporanon
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~ CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO o
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET oo - T e

ALL AGENCY FUNDS s
DECEMBER 31, 1999 ) -
‘Building and _ )
Standards ’ TOTAL
Assets: |
Equity in pooled cash and investments . $ 46 1 — 46
Total assets R . , 46 o 46
Liabilities: &
Undistributed money . . - o 46 o 46_ )
Total liabilities B - 46 N 46

8%



CITY OF OXFORD o

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES '

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999 = -

Beginning

Ending

Balance . Balance
1/1/99 Additions  Deductions - 12/31/99
- CEMETERY FUND
Assets: . i
Equity in pobled cash and investments 3 - - - -
Liabilities: - . -
Undistributed money L C- - s -
BOARD OF BUILDING AND STANDARDS FUND - e o
Assets: | ) . _
Equity in pooled cash and investments 71 603 628 46
Liabilities: 7
Undistributed money o 71 603 628 46
' - A B s - - : :
HOTEL TAX FUND :
Assets: B . o
Equity in pooled cash and investments o - 2,491 05,874 98,365, -
Liabifities:
_ Undistributed money 2,491 95,874 98,365 7 -
R - o T e Iy -
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION FUND - - ' . '
Assets: o
Equity in pooled cash and investments - e - - -
Liabilities:
Undistributed money ) o - . - - -
TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS o - S
Assets: . : . .
Equity in pooled cash and investments o 2,562 ° . 96477 98,993 46
2,562 . . 96,477 98993 0 46
Liabilities:
Undistributed money o B 2,562”‘ 7 96,477 " 68,993 , 46
5 2,562 96477 98993 " 46

50




'GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for all lands, bulldmgs
1mprovements and equipment not used in the operation of the enterprise funds.
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO |
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 1999

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:. .

Land . 8 1615446
Buildings . L 2,334,853
Improvements : - S o 423212
Equipment T T T e 2,741,832 o
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS . . .~ =~ 7115343
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS FROM: L
General Fund 2,691,114
Special Revenue Funds ~ ) B R - 1,325,019
Capital Projects Funds o o o 2,696,850 °
Donations =~ o -' ) 402360

TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS __ S 7115343

e me—a—— - T L -
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

DECEMBER 31, 1999

SECURITY OF PERSONS
AND PROPERTY:

Police department . .3

Fire and life squad
Civil defense
Communications

Total

LEISURE TIME ACTIVITIES:
Recreation and parks
administration
Sendor citizens =~ - -

. Total

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT:
Planning
Building inspection
Housing inspection
Parks and public property
Recycling center
Total

r

TRANSPORTATION:
Parking control
Street maintenance and repair
Total

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
- City Manager
Finance.
Personnel
Municipal building
Court house
Engineering
- Garage
Total

TOTAL GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS s

Equipment

Totai

1022394 .

1106299 .

93 .

_Land  Buildings Improvements
- 230865 . . .- . 647261 878,126
121,003 314,663 , . 100,843 601,298 1,137,807
- : 54,494 - 54,494
. <. . - 170085 _ 170,085 .
121003~ 545,528 . 155337 1,418,644 2,240,512
8000 396344 37,658 _ 92,694 534,696
45000 780250 . . - 10,279 835529
53,000, 1,176,594 37,658 . 102973 1,370,225
L Cee e 9369
- SR 24943 24,943
- s e s o 3431 11,600 . . 15031
726,579 11,730 183,013 35279 . 956,601
- . 16450 - - 16,450
726,579 . 28180 186444 81,191
700,864 . - . 18,894 _ 29200 757,958 .
] . - 617,955 . 617,955
709,864 _ - 18,894 647,155 1375913
oL - - 24974 T 24974
- - - - 122,574 122,574
- 5,000 287,147 24,879 188258 505284
- . 239,480 - 09992 . 249472
T - — 110,520 110,520
- ST924 - 5551 93475
5000 584,551 24,879 491,869
1615446 2334853 423212 2741832  7,115343
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO  _ ,
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balandée _ Balance
January 1, December 31,
. 1999 © Additions Deletions r 1999
SECURITY OF PERSONS _
AND PROPERTY: LT e - . - -
Police department , $ 876,974 40,127 38975 878,126
Fire and life squad ] . 1,104,321 33,486 . . . -. . _1,137,807
Civil defense - . 54494 - - 54494
Communications : ” . S 153,639 . 16,446 . - - 170,085
Total 2,189,428 90,059 38975 2240512
LEISURE TIME ACTIVITIES: - A , T R
Recreation and parks administration. = 539,004 - 7 4308 534,696
Senior citizens - o 8355529 - - ... .B35529
Total , 1,374,533 - :4308 1370225
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT: - - | - o
Planning 293697 - - To- S 9,369
Building inspection - 15548 . 9395. - 7 24943
Housing inspection ‘ ' ¢ 15,031 ‘ - : - 15,031
Parks and public property 832,988 123613 - . 956,601
Recycling center , 16,450 . - _ - 16450
Total ‘ ' 885,386 133,008 .- . 1,022,394
TRANSPORTATION: T . .
Parking control - 757,958 - - 757,958
Street maintenance and repair - ' 607,186 | 17,899 7,130 . 617,955
Total 1,365,144 17,899 7,130 1,375,913
GENERAL GOVERNMENT: ST oo I . - I
City Manager 7 - 24974 - - - 24,974
Finance 122,574 - 122,574 ©
Municipal building : 502,089 - 3,195 Lo 505,284
Court house . 235135, 14,337 .- 249472
Engirieering =~ coe oo 1105200 . - - " 110,520
Garage S ers T e e T 93475
Total _ 1,088,767 17,532 - 1,106,299
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS. . $ 6907258 258,498 50413 7115343
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STATISTICAL TABLES

The following unaudited statistical tables reflect s_pcial_ang ecgnom‘icail_dz;ta, financial trends and

fiscal capacity of the City. - S T L
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

INCOME TAX REVENUES

LAST TEN YEARS
Year Amount % of Change
1990 - $1,726,513 - ,
1991 o _ 1,770,643 L 2.6% -
1992 ' : S - 1,641,548 -73% T
1993 S ss 2065877 . 258% .
1994 . 3,707.877 79.5%
1995 4,050,556 .~ T 792% ..
1996 | 3,935,038. . -29%.
1997 4,562,889 16.0%
1998 : 4,769,853 4.5%

1999 , 4987284  46%
NOTE: Reflects increase in income tax rate from 1.0% to 1.75% cf_‘fec':tive Ianu*ary 1, 1994,

Source: City of Oxford Finance Department
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CAIY OF QRFOoRn, ONI0
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE) ’

LAST TEN YEARS o S }
: Vgcational Total
Year City County Township School School Rate
1990 8365 = $745 | %024 $51.80 $2.01 . $65.15
1991 3.65 . 745 ~ 024 . 51.80 197 . 6511
1992 3.65 . 745 024 __,.__'51,80 A ¥ A 8 §
1993 365 . 745 . 024 5180, 197 65.11 =
1994 3.65 < 745 . 024 5180 193 65.07 1 1
1995 ~ 365" . 744 024 SLBO.. . 193 6506 i
1996 3.65 .. 844 024 _ 4630. . 193 . 60.56
1997 365 .. . 845 . 0024 74380 193 5807
1998 3.65 845 024 4380. 193 3807
1999 365 .. .845 7 Q24 4380 193 0 5807
Source: Butler County Treasurer's Office -~~~ =~~~ 77 - T e
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO ) .
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of
Totai ' Total Total Collections
Assessments Assessments Qutstanding To Amount
Year Due Collected =~~~ Assessments Due
1950 $14,446 $10,349 $4,097 T 71.6 %
1991 13,688° - 8,964 : 4,724 655
1992 14,248 8,889 _ 5359 624
1993 9,456 - 7,727 RS Uy B 8L.7
1994 26,436 23,043 339 - 871
1995 50,286 43,061 71228 T 85.6
1996 s2003, - 24399 27,694 : - 47.0
1997 50,449 S T390 10,479 S 792 .
1998 - 29516 ' 19,033 - 10,483 64.5

1999 | 20476 1962 Cosar 959,

Source: Butler County Auditor's Office
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CITY QF QXFAaRD, QUIQ
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT

TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN YEARS
Year Population
1990 18,937
1991 18,937
1992 18,937
1993 - 18,937
1994 19,455
1995 19,455
1996 19,455
1997 22,469
1998 wk o 22 469
1999 ** 22,469
Source:

W

1980 and 1990 U.S. Census Bureau ,
* Pederal Census Bureau Division of Populatlon Estimate
City of Oxford Comprehensive Plan

Assessed
Value

$99,314,116

© 115,449,313
115,976,388

117,822,301

129,542,307

131,626,900
158,618,424
165,326,704

166,896,588

192,475,345

Butler County Auditor's Office

City of Oxford Finance Department

Net
General
Obligation
Bonded
Debt
Qutstanding

$84,900
68,600
51,200
32,700

12,800

| 3,915,000

103

Bonded Debt -

Per Capita

N $4 48

- 362

270
173

- 0.66

17424

Ratio of
Bonded Debt to
Assessed Value

-, 0.0855
~0.0594

0 0441
-0.0278

%

0.0099



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Total Assessed Property Value : . i $192.475,345

10-1/2% limitation

Overall Debt Limitations - 10-1/2% of

Assessed Valuation . ‘ S ' 20209911
Gross Indebtedness . _ o, 528,342,730 R
Less Debt Outside Limitations L o 7{24242_7;7391 ) ~
Debt Within 10-1/2% Limitation _ 3,915,000 | B}
Less Debt Service Fund Balance Available . 7 I
— - Net Debt Within 10-1/2% Limitation’ : ' SRR 3,915,000
Legal Debt Margin Within 10-1/2% Limitation o o : $16,294911 .

5-1/2% limitation

e P T e e s

Unvoted Debt Limitation - 5-1/2%o0f =~ o o |
Assessed Valuation o - I o "%10,586,144
Gross Indebtedness Authorized by Council _ _ 7 $28,342,730° B
Less Debt Outside Limitations o (24427730
Debt Within 5-1/2% Limitation T 3815000
Less Debt Service Fund Balance Available ) 0
Net Debt Within 5-1/2% Limitation - S i 3,915000 .
Legal Debt Margin Within 5-1/2% Limitation T B $6,671,144

Source:  City of Oxford Finarice Department
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CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO o -
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Net
General
Obligation  Percentage  Amount
Bonded Applicable Applicable
Debt to Cityof  to City of
Jurisdiction Outstanding Oxiord Oxford
DIRECT: ' T ' Tt o o T - .
City of Oxford $3,515,000 100.00 % .$3,915,000
OVERLAPPING: - - - g
Talawanda School District -~~~ =~ -~ - 410,000 4410 180810
Butler County Joint Vocational School. 05,295,000 . 478 253,101 _
Butler County o . o 28575000 .. 3.18 908,685 . .
‘Total - _§34,280,000 $1,342,596

Source:  Ohio Municipal Advisory Council
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CUY OF OXFORD, ONIOC

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES

FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN YEARS
Debt

Year Principal
1990 $6,100
1991 16,300
1992 17,400
1993 18,500
1994 19,900

- 1995 12,800,
1996 -
1997 -
1998 -
1999 -

Interest

$6,433"

6,710
4,509

3,358

© 2,082
_238

Debt Service
Expenditures

~ $12,533

- 23,010

. 21,909

21,982

13,038

Source: City of Oxford Finance Department

Governmental
Expenditures

$4,223.814

21,858

4,088,803

4,496,416
4,337,890

-5,483215 .
6,153,039
. 6,945,972

: 6,536 071

8,144,204

7,596,480

106

Ratio of
Deht Service Expenditures
to Total General
Governmental Expenditures

0.30 %
T 056
0.49
0.50 -

C 040
'—021



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WATER FUND
LAST TEN YEARS
. ; _ Net Revenue
Gross Operating  Available for

Year

1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
[995
1996
1997
1998
1999

{1) Amount represents water fund operating revenues.

Revenues (1}

$1,980,406
2,129,713
2,126,613
2,266,687
2,494,053
2,341,192

2,539,273

2,584,771
12,743,303
2,969,727

Expenses (2) Debt Service

$563,292 31,417,114
629,522 ... 1,500,191

879,595 1,247,018

1963,230 .. 1,303,457

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

' Principal -

$220,000

1,176,457 1,317,596

1,233,225_. . "1,107,967 -
1,320,965 . = 1,218,308
1,230,398 . 1,354,373

. 1,367,090 1,376,213

1,307,233~ .. 1,662,494 |

230,000.

610,000
375,000
385,000

" 400,000
420,000

440,000

460,000

480,000

Interest

$1.010,792

996,403

769,406
. T73,137

7 810,085

795,455

738,675
716,135

(2) Amount represents water fund operating expenses, less depreciation.

Source: City of Oxford Finance Department
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778,255
759,355

Total

$1,230,792 .
1,226,403
1,379,406
1,148,137
1,195,085
1,195,455

1,198255 .
.. 1,199.355°

1,198,675

. 1,196,135

Coverage

115 %
122 .
90
114

110

S99y

2
113
115
139



CITY OF OXFORD, OHIO ' ’ h

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS . _
LAST TEN YEARS
School
: Enroliment Unemployment
Year Population (Public) Rate

1990 .~ 718,937 ' 73,471 , 57%
1991 18,937 3,348 . . . 59.
1992 . 18,937 ~ .77 C 3,429 - 6.6 -
1993 , 18937 3,478 65 -
1994 * 19,455 . .. 3,575 0 .. L0 T 53
1995 * 19,455 . . 13,6097 L. 40
1996 _ R 19455 00 UTTTI36360. Tl 0 oL 4L
1697 ** . 22,469 . 03,636 . . 0 35
1698  ** . 22469 0 3478 . 3.0
1999 ** . 22,469 L3392 R X .

Source; 1990 U.S. Census Bureau )
* Federal Census Bureau Division of Population Estimate
** City of Oxford Comprehensive Plan
Talawanda City School District '
Ohio Bureau of Employment Services; rates are for Butler County
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CITY OF OXFORD OHIO
CONSTRUCTION, PROPERTY VALUE AND BANK DEPOSITS

LAST TEN YEARS
Bank

Number of Construction Property Deposits in
Year Permits Value . Vaiue (1) Thousands
1990 - 181 ... $7630,000 0 0 $84,874,000 $1,204,529
1991 194 ; 6,641,050 ’ 99,342,650 . ... 904,381
992 . 240 - .7 7,500,229 CL- 99,561,950 0 L 724,213 0
993 . . 328 o 12,571,855 101,113,060, 711,686
1694 266 ©15,279,523 . .00 112,840,290 . 737,683
1995 _ 332 - 0 . 10,458,176 . 114,597,730, T 800,556
1996 332 T.779,940,278 7 139,414,540 . 783,398
1997 419 21,185,042 . . . .143,924,230 o, Bl5435
1998 414 11,490,976 - 147,573,240 864,105
1999 364 11,099,146 . 172,268,090 913,169

Source: City of Oxford Finance Department
Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland for Butler County, Ohio Banks

(1) Real Property Assessed Valuation
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CYTY OF OXFORD, OO
1999 PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS |

Assessed Percentage of Total

iy

Taxpayer Type of Business \faluatqun _ _ Assg_sﬁse_d}(aiuaﬁqn‘
Square D Company - Manufacturing $5,517,860 287 %
Cincinnati Gas. & Electric | Utilitiy , 4,849,860 .. 252
D&BFamilyLtdPrt  Real Estate 3034980 . - 158
Edward Redpath Real Estate 3,025,460 o 1.57
GTE North Utility 3,017,530 : 1.57
University Commons Prt  Real Estate 2640620 . . 137
Cgden Investments Pt Real Estate - _ 2,444,570 T 1:27
Ray & Mary Day Real Estate 2,045,020 ST .1 06
Ned & Vickia Hoeizer ~ RealEstate - 1,516,750 - 079
Arrowhead Crossing Ltd . Real Estate 1426000 o074
SUB-TOTAL 29,518,660 _ 1534
ALL OTHERS 162,956,685 8466
TOTAL $192,475,345 100:0.0 %

110



CITY OF QXromn, OO .
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Date of incorporation

Date of municipal charter adoption
Form of government -

Area

Miles of streets

EMPLOYEES e
Number of authorized full-time employees -

FIRE AND EMS PROTECTION
Fire chief (full-time) i
Assistant fire chief (part-time)
Number of fire fighters (pari-time)
Number of life squad members (part-time)
Number of stations ) '

POLICE PROTECTION
Police Chief (full-time) .
Additional authorized police officers (full-time)
Authorized civilian employees (full-time)
Number of stations

RECREATION
Number of parks
Number of swimming pools

WATER SERVICE
Number of consumers
Annual production
Miles of water mains

SEWER SERVICE -
Number of consumers
Annual treatment -
Miles of sanitary sewers '

PARKING METERS
EDUCATION
Number of schools
Number of teachers -
Number of students
HOSPITAL

LIBRARY

1it

BRI

" 1830

1960 . )
Council-Manager
5.82 Square Miles
48.56 '

25 .
10

- 4,186

878.38 million gallons
70 - ,

3002 . T
1,108.91 million gallons

g

592

245 : : o
3,392 ‘ .

60 beds

86,802
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STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

CITY OF OXFORD

BUTLER COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION

88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed

in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Poabbtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
SEPTEMBER 21, 2000
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